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DNU
EDELCOS
EDENOR
EDEMSA
ENRE

EPRE

GWhn
HASA
HDS
ICSID
INDEC
ARAM
‘MEM
RTI
SEN
VAD

Assodation of Electnc Power Distiibutors of the Argentine Repubhc
Compaﬁia Admrmstradora del Mercado Mayorista Eléctrico

(the company ‘if 'harge of the regulation and operation of the wholesale etectrfcny
market)

Empresa Dis' burdora y Comercializadora Norte S Ay
Empresa. Drstrqburdora de Electii¢idad de Mendoza S. A
Ente Nacronat Regulador de la Electricidad (National Regulatory Authority for the
Distﬂbullon of Electricity }s

Ente Pro inciatl Regutador Electrico (Mendoza's electncﬂy market regulatory o

Gigawatt'hour

Hidroeléctrica Ameghirio S.A.

Hrdroeléctnca del Sur’ SA“\

International Center for Settlement of tnvestment Dgsputas
Naﬁonai Statrstics Institute ..

National Institu 'of Standardjzation and Certifications
Mercado Electdco Mayousta (Wholesale Electnaty Market)
Tariff Structure Review

National Secretary of Energy

Distribution Added Vajte (T ariff)
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" The Diréctors present thé”:r Strateg?c Report on the Gfoup for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Overview

Andma Plc (“Andmas, or tha(Company and with its subsldlar:es the "Group ) s a Latin American energy group with
pamcapataon n two of the: 1argest electricxty utilvties in terms of market share in Argentina, Energy is our core business;
we are involved'in the distribution of eleclnctty and regulated pubtic services, we participate in the electricity generation
market through our mterest in HASA who operates a hydroelectric power plant,”and we are focused on developing
renewable energy projects.

Key financial results l‘ncorporatmg the resuhs of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out betow:
* Revenue US$227.5 miflion (2020;US$189.3 million)
+  Operaling profit US$17.4 mfflion (2020°US$9.0 miliion loss)

Business raview
- The Group's pnncipal actwny is electncny distiibution‘in the regu!ated public sector in Argentina. its principal assets .-
are an 11, 93%ainterest in Empresa Distribiiidora y Comercializadora Norte S.A. (*EDENOR"), the largest electricity
distribution, company in Argentma in terms of numbar of customers and electﬂcﬂy sokd; a 51% controlling interest in
Empresa Dnstnbufdora de Erectncfdad de Mendoza S; A. ("EDEMSA”), the main e§ectncny distribution company in the
Province of Mendoza and a 23. G%élnterest’in Hidroeléctrica Ameghmo S.A, (“HASA") a 60MW hydroelectric power
plant in the province ‘of Chubutss™

Revenue for the Group for the year mcreased from US$189 3 milhon in 2020 to US$227 5 mumon m 2021. Revenue

44444

The Group’s total assets have ificreased from US$327.4 million at the end of 2020 to US$426.7 million at the end of
2021 mainly due to thelinvestment'in SAE LLP and addmons to property, plant and equipment increase.

Total currentwﬂabmues increased from US$208;3 mlllion at the end of 2020 to US$248.9 million at the end of 2021. At
the year-end, the Group had cash resources of US$5;8 mvll:on compared to US$10:2 million at the end of 2020;;.

Borrowings,, exoluding Ieases,,have fhcreased from 0855@ riitllion at the,.end of 2020 to US$12.9 million at the.end of
2021:sCurrent borrowings; exchiding’ leases, decreased ffom US$2:9 million at the end of 2020 to US$0.1, mnllfon at
the end of 2021 (due to the cancellation of the SAED toan) and nonscurrent borrowings, excluding leases; ‘increased
- from, US$2 .9 niiflion at tha end of 2020 to US$12.9 million atthe end of 2021 (due to new loans entered for the EDENOR

Al

Operating and financial teview ., .,
Due to the continuous sfgn:fscant devaluatlon of the AR$lhe ﬁnanaal revieéw has been prepared in both AR$ and US$
to facilitate a better understandfng of the undertylng busmess performance:;
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EDEMSA

Financlal review
In 2021 EDEMSA reported a post-tax loss of US$19.8 million (AR$2 1008.5 miliion - Ioss) compared wnh a US$20.9
million post-tax loss in 2020 (AR$2,638.6 million - loss).

Sales slightly increased in real terms compared to the previous year (0.2%) mainly because of the tariff increases in
January and September 2021 and the 3% increase in the sales volumes. Cost of sales decreased by 15;8%. This was
mainly due to a 25.5% decrease in the supply costs. All this caused the gross margin in real terms to increase from
US$24.6 million in 2020 (AR$3,100 million) to US$61 miffion in 2021 (AR$6 259 million).

Finance costs mainly relate to interest charged on the outstanding payables due to CAMMESA whvch are the subject

of ongoing negotiations to resolve the level of electricity tariffs increases in the past few years to reach a setllement - '

agreement.

b
k]

Income tax has been lmpacted by changes’introduced in income tax rates, meaning the deferred tax«ﬁabulxty ansmg '

on fixed assets has been measured at a rate of 35% rather than at a rate of 25%, as well as by the ?ecognltlon ofa
tax inflation adjustment of US$30 million (AR$3,084.4 million) in fiscal year 2021

Operating review i
During 2021, ongoing focus on productivity and process efﬁcuency continued. it was a year of economic recovery in
Argentina after an atypical 2020 severely affected by the COVID 19 pandemic.

During 2021, the amount of energy soid totaled 3 308 GWh, which represents a@unueam of 3.4% as compared to
2020 and the maximum value of power reached was 1.2% above that of the previdus year

During 2021, levels of energy losses reached 16. 19%' which represents a siight decrease compared to the 16,49%
of 2020- Energy losses are equivalent to the difference between energy purchased and energy sotd

Tariff update
The VAD is the amount of income required annuaﬂy for the distribiutor to carry out the tech’hﬂfat and commercial

opera,’uon in its concession area, through efficiént management and to ensure the long-term finandal sustainabllity of .-

the distributor.

The Sth tariff review was commenced on 8 February 2017 by the Ente Provincial Regulador Electrico FEPRE")
covering a period from 1 August 2018 to 31 July 2023 Foélowmg a public heanng on 3 July 2018 new tariffs were
enforced on 1 August 2018. The new tariff tables weré the Same as thosé prevgously in foroe and did not reﬂect the
sEgmﬁcant cost increases of the electncity providers. Consequently, EDEMSA appealed th:s new taﬁff and i ns currently
awamng the resolution of this appeal.

On 8 January 2020 and on 28 July 2020 EDEMSA submitted 2 requesls to EPRE for a recuriing slxvmonthly review '

of the electricity distribution companies’'VAD accordmg to the protocogs established under the prevnousty published
Decree 48/17. Following a public hearing on 26 Februafy 2020 and another on 11,December 2020, Decree 08/21 was
publnshed instructing EPRE to putinto effect a new tafiff scherne effective as of H January 2021z,

On 28 January 2021, EDEMSA submitted another request to ERRE for a recuring $ix- monthty review of the e!ectﬂclty

.distribution cornpanies’ VAD according to the protocols established under the previousiy puanshed Decree 48/17.
Following a public hearing on 30 June 2021, Decree 1430{21 was pubfished instructing EPRE to update the tariff,
which became effective on 20 September 2021.

On,29 July 2021, EDEMSA submilted a further request to EPRE for a recurnng semi-annual tanff revlew under Decree
48?17 Following a public hearing on 18 November 2021, Decree 25/22 was publgshed mstructmg EPRE to put into
effect anew tariff scheme effective as of 13 January 2022. ‘mis decree came ifito effect ln 2022,

In the mﬂauonary context in which the Argentinian eompantes are \operattng to the extent that the biannual tanff rate
adjustment is granted according to current regulations;:EDEMSA’s economic andy ﬂnanc{al ltuauon wili s;gmﬂcanlly

}Improve. as will the value of the busmess Thls will have a highly positie impact on the Groupe financial sltuatlona

&t

.
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CAMMESA debt

CAMMESA is the company responsible, for the regu!at:on and operation of the wholesale electricity market. EDEMSA
purchases electricity from CAMMESA in order to facilitate etectncny distribution to its customers in Mendoza,
Contihuous disputes regardmg tariff ad;ustmenis have led to significant amounts payable to CAMMESA, as detailed
below 3

Settiement of CAMMESA's debt prior to January 2016
At 31 December 2021 EDEMSA owed CAMMESA US$19.5 m:llxon (AR$2 bill:on) for historic energy purchases
incurred prior to 2016..

During 2018, EDEMSA and CAMMESA agreed a payment plan for CAMMESA's historic debt incurred prior to January
2016 (US$19.5 riliton (AR$2,000 mllslon))‘ whichiincluded a reduction in late charges, a grace period from 1 February
2016 to April 2018, a financing term aof 90 months from Aprilf 2018 untﬂ September 2025 and a fixed annual interest
rate of 10%:

On 31 December 2021 EDEMSA owed CAMMESA US$17.8 mifiion (AR$1.8 billion) under this payment plan.

The payment plan estabfishes,. that the failure to pay of the plan‘instalments and/or the invoices whose due date is
dunng the term of the plam wdl “cause the immedlate and_ automatrc expiration of the financing plan. The agreement
1§ being fulfilled and there were no unpaid-instalments or ifwoices due during the term at the reporting date.

Article 15 and the implications for CAMMESA's debt

. Notwithstanding the payment plan for CAMMESA's hlston”cy debt;. noted above, on 21 December 2016, Law 27.341
. was published (FY2017 National Government Budget): Article 15 of this law estabﬁshed the compensation terms for

the historic debt that Argentine electricity distributors have with CAMMESA i relation to the purchase of energy

. between 2013 and 2016 (a time durlng which electrscnty tariffs were frozen).

Under this law, CAMMESA was giVen the authofity to offset the differences in the income received by the distributors
against the income that would have been recogniSed under the concession,, ;agreement (known as the Uneamed
Income); In this case, ince EDEMSA's Unearned Income exceeded the Ilabmty owed to CAMMESA for the 2013-

.., 2016 period, the apphcat?on of the law would have resulted in a complete offset and settlement of the outstanding

liability.

.. Despite already agreeing to a payment plan with CAMMESA in respect of the 2013-2016 debt (see Settlement of
: CAMMESA's debt prior to January 2016), EDEMSA had not relinquished its right to claim the credit outlined in Article

- 15. Subsequently, the company filed a series of claims with the Nationat Secretary of Energy (SEN), the Province of

Mendoza and the EPRE to enforce the application of Article 15. However, through the Settiement Agreement signed
on 28 December 2022 with the SEN, EDEMSA has now renounced any right, action or administrative, to any judicial;;
extrajudicial or arbitration claim in the Argentine Republic and/or abroad against the National State and/or CAMMESA
and/or the Province of Mendoza. Additionally, through the Settlement Agreement signed on 3 January 2023 with the
Government of the Province of Mendoza (see Seltlement Agreement with the Govemment of the Province of
Mendoza) EDEMSA has now relinquished any and all administrative and/or judicial claims, whether initiated or not for
Unearned Income accrued during the 2008-2022 period, up 1o the date of signing the agreement. This agreement
does not have an impact on the 2021 financial results. As a result, EDEMSA continues to fulfill its commitments under
the payment plan, as noted above.

Settlement of CAMMESA's current debt

As of 31 December 2021, EDEMSA owed CAMMESA US$118.2 million (AR$12.1 billion} for energy purchases
incurred after 2018, of which US$110.4 million (AR$11.3 billion) is due immediately. EDEMSA is currently in the
process of negotiating a payment plan with CAMMESA to ensure it is reflective of the tough economic landscape in
which EDEMSA operates.

On 14 December 2020, Law 27.591 was published (FY2021 National Government Budget). Article 87 of this law
instructs the SEN to agree a settlement plan to resolve the debts and credits that electricity distributor agents of the
MEM hold with CAMMESA and/or the MEM as of 30 September 2020, the “Special System for the Regularization of
Payment Obligations™. On 22 February 2022, by means of DNU (Executive Order issued on the grounds of Necessity
and Urgency) No. 88, the Executive Power extended the negotiation unti! 31 December 2022.
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Settlement of CAMMESA ‘s current debt (continued)

On 28 December 2022; a Deed Agreement was signed by and between EDEMSA; EPRE,, the SEN and the
Government of the Provinoe of Mendoza for the resolution of MEM'S obllgatlons. The rnaln issues that were agreed
were; .

o

1J. Recognition of the debtin favor of CAMMESA,,

% et i3
2)< Reoogniﬁon of the credﬁ’m favor of EDEMSA \ilth the SEN&

kg3

= 3 Determmation of the payment plan,

ez

g

4y Renounclng of EDEMSA ta any right. acﬁon or admmtstrattve luducuaf f.extrajudfcral or arbltratmn clarm in the

@

,,,,,

andforin Laws No: 2‘(.341 27'431 and 27 541 =

N

5); Ctosure of | iawsurts filed against the Nationa! State andior CAMMESA related to the debt wrth the Who!esale

Electncrty Market

Among the ob!Igabons of the Dlstnbutor.,EDEMSA agreed to sign a Debt Reguladzation Agreement with CAMMESA
‘(for the current debt in force as of 30 Aprﬂ 2021? before 31 May 2023 {extended according to SEN's note N0~2023-
'48607674},

2

At the date of these ﬁnandal statements; EDEMSA s wtthm the perfod stlpulated for the stgnrng of the Debt
Regulafizatidn Agreement Therefore, the Company s Management believes the*impact thergof will be recorded at the
moment of execution of the Debt Regularizaticn Agreement that the Distributor carfies out with its débtor (CAMMESA):

Although to date the pafttes have not yet ﬁnatlsed the Debt Regularization Agreement, EDEMSA is negotiatiig with
the jntention of srgnmg it3In the meantime} "EDEMSA has made full payments to CAMMESA for alj iihvoices related to
the purchase of energy” s[noe March 2021. The srgning of the Debt Regufarization Agreement *with ) CAMMESA i8
crucial for EDEMSA as'it would enable the Company to agree a payment plan with its main suppher-wThrs would
contribute to stabilizing - Its econoniic and financial sltuaﬂon, ultlmately improving the fii nancral position of the enhre
Group:

Settlement Agreement with the Govemment of the Province of Mendoza
On 3 January 2023; EDEMSA enterediifito a Settiement Agreement with the Province of Mendozag reinforced by the
publrcatlon of Decree 70/23 on 31 January 2023; aimed at resolving the diSputes ongmated by the Uneamed Income
(as set out’in Atticle 15 of Law 27, 341) between 2013 and 2016 that should have been received by EDEMSA but
remauned unpaid for reasons attribGtable to the Provinca's obﬁgatxons.

prd
Pursuant to the abovementioned Settlement Agreement; the Provifice of Mendoza:

a) has granted EDEMSA a 20-year extengion of the concession agreement | for the alectricity dlstnbutTBn
service effective from 1 August 2028; n addit!on it agrees;;not to offer EDEMSA’s Class A shares for blddrng.
as the current holder exprassed rts iftention to retarn such ownership. Furthermore, the Province will not
make any monetary claim agdinst the Distnbutor for the extension of the concession agreement term‘

b) reduces the concession fee"(canon) from ten parcent (10%) to six percent (6%} from the date thi§
agreement becomes effective,

c) The Grantmg Authonty. as the ho!der of C!ass B and C shares of EDEMSA, commits to take the necessary

corporate actions to ensure that any profits eventually entgtted to hotders of Class B and C shares vgltlx be

allocated to investments alined at expanding the system andlommprovmg energy efficiency, and

d) undertakes to comply wnh tariff readjustment pmoedures as outlined in the concession agreement and
appllcabte Iegnslation{, It also agrees t0<;nclude dn the dstermination of tariff charts the costs of certain

gx
o

B
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Séttlerﬁem Agreement wlth the Government oi the Province of Mendoza (continued)

* investment pfans agreed with EPRE to be cafried out by EDEMSA and the payment plan agreed upon
betwean EDEMSA,vCAMMESA,the SEN and the Provifice of Mendoza signed in December 2022 to settle
its debts with the MEM (See Setllament of CAMMESA', § current debt), as well as the remaining balance of
the payment plan sxgned between the Distributor and CAMMESA'in 2018 (See Settlemnment of CAMMESA's
debt prior to January 2016)v ‘

!?1 return; under t_{pjs; Settlement Agreement,;EDEMSAﬁ%

a) waives any admm;strauve or judicial clanms _whather filed or not, for Unearned Income accrued during
2013-2016; up to tha date of signing the agreement I

b) undertakes to fuifili:the 10-year {Avestment plans agreed upon with EPRE,

c) undertakes to obtam and dehver fo the Grantmg Authonty g') the ratmcahon of the agreement by the
shareholders® meeling of EDEMSA and! 1ts shareholde!s. and it} walve all administrative or judicial claims
whether or not filed to date, In particular, walves any cfalm filed or not - before the International Center for
Settlement of Investment Disputes (ICSID) agamst the’ Grantmg Authority and/or EPRE, and

d) the current holder of C!ass A shares should declare’its intention to retain such ownership for the 20-year
extension of the concess:on. This declaration was completed through a notarial notification dated 13 March
2023

" The Setttement Agreement was approved and ratified by the general meeung of the Company duly convened and
held on Fnday 24 March 2023;. Although the mentioned agreement has no direct impact on the 2021 financtal
statemems ithas a positwe effect on the future of EDEMSA;; ,pamcularly it contributes to tha improvement of cash

... flows and the vailie of EDEMSA, mal’i\lyﬁbewuse of the concession extension, the reduction of the concession fee;.
. and the recognihon of the costs of cerain investment plans and payment plans in the determination of tariff charts.f

These factors i lmprove the financial position of the Group, maklng it'to conﬁnue operating as a going concern;

W
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EDENOR
Andina has an 11. 93%*mdirect interest it EDENOR from 30 June 2021 {see more detéils about EDENOR acqulsmon

“‘in note 15), and:in Iight of theﬂmpact of this’ mvestmenl on And‘x/na s financial results and position, we havesincluded
below a brigf.overviéw of EDENOR's operating and financial réview for 2021,

Financial review
EDENOR reported a posl-tax loss of US$208 mwmn (AR$21;344 muknon).the operatmgdoss iti 2021 was US$43
mlfleon {AR$4 397 m:lluon).«The operatmg loss wasimpacted by the minima¥: lncrease of the electriofty tariff as aresult
of the tafiff freeze ordered by the Federav Government éand the consistent” lguease in operatmg costs necessary to
maintain the; level of service in an; mﬂatlonary economy: The gross margin in 2021 {including transmissnon and
drstnbutmn expenses) was 1

i

Operating review

EDENOR’s demand for electncl’ty in 2021 amounted to 26 373 GWh,. which represents a 5%;3"10(8389 compared to
that of:2020 Addrtlonaﬂy,;ln 2021 the maximum value of power reached amounted to,5; 571 MW, 7;7%';above that of
20203The amount of energy sold‘in 2021 totaled 21710 GWh, which represents a 7‘6%smcrease oompared to 2020

Energy Gosses for 2021 were 17. 62%# whlch Jfepresents a decrease compared to the 19; 61% of the prevlous year,
caused malnty by the losses’ in GWh;; and the]; inctease in the blllmg of large users (who purchase its energy demand
directly from CAMMESAY.

HASA o "

Andﬁ\a lost control of HASA on 25 February 2021 when it transferred 50% of its shares in HDS to South American

_Energy Development LLC; as at 31 December 2021 Andina held a 40% shareholding in HASA, therefore wa have
“included a brief overview of HASA'sifinancial and operating review for 2021 below.

Financial review

#The, company recorded a loss after tax for the year of US$1.3 million (AR$134.6 million) compared to 2020 of US$0.5
million (AR$58i6 mnllion) Sales in real terms decreaged amounting to US$3.3 million in 2021 (AR$339.2 million)
compared to US$3;6 million i 2020 (AR$448,7 million). The power generated in 2021 was 82 GWh, a 24.86%
decrease compared to the 110 GWh generated fn 2020

On 19 May 2021, the Mmlstry of Energy of the Natlon approved Resolution 440/2021 with a new remuneration scheme
for energy generatlng companieszThe main modifications were a 29% increase in the price of generated and operated
energy, and the annulment of the future price i increase

Operating review
Water supply during the year was 424,6 hm? compared to 1,306.1 hm? in 2020. The total energy produced during the
year was 82.72 MWh, 29. 3% Iower than the previous year,,

Water level
The reservegr water level is aniindication of the amount of power that can be generated. The water Ievel at the end of
2021 was 141209 meters compared to 152} 83 meters at the end of 2020.

£
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~ANDINA GROUP

Key performance indicators

The Directors use a range of performance Yndicators to monltor progress in the delivery of the Group‘s strategtc
objectwes ‘to assess actual performance against targets and to faal‘tate the management of the business. They
conspder the following key performance mdlcators to be relevant in assessing performance.

Revenue A

Sales provide a measure’ of the Group's activuty that’] hﬂuenced by the demand for electricity, the amount of afectﬁc?ty
generated and energy pnces .Revenue increased fr m US$188, 3. million (AR$23,885 million) in 2020 to US$227 5
million (AR$23.349 million) in 12021 because of the tariff increases in January and September 20213

Gross margin

This represents the margin generated by, the core business and excludes all non-operating costs, such as.fi nancmg

and tax expenses as well as any one -off items:Gross Thargin in US§increased to 26.8% in 2021 from 13:6%;in 2020.»
Pa

Covid-19

Unlike 2020, which was strongly affected by the COV!D-19 pandemic that had a high sacial, economic; and financial

impact, 2021 was a year of economic recovery thanks to the rapid dlstnbutlon of vaccmes and smplementahon of

vaccTnat|on programs all over the world which aElowed for a return to some greater normallty in terms of activity.

in 2021, the Federal Government launched an intensive vaccinatnon campalgn in order to control the pandemic, which
allowed for a return to normaiity and therefore a strong rebound’in economic activity throughout the year,

Although the future of the pandemic remains unknown,at the date of this report, the situa_tifon;j(lus ‘stabiﬁsed, and
management do not expect significant further impact.

Future developments

. The fimmediate focus for management contiues to be on negdfiation of the taréff that wnll ensure the long-term

sustamabal&y of the busmess and cortinued'investments if‘infrastructure.

K

: Management i workmg with the regulatory authormesxm order to implement Amcte 87 of Law 27:591 whlch ‘Is an area

of primary focus for the forthcoming year, The' implementation of the referred amde Fs expected to allow EDEMSA to
strengthen uw financual  situation.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon reporting
The Company has 0o, physxca\ oparations and no employees. Electricity and gas consumption are below 40 000 kWh
annual:y Accordifigly ;i€ not required to provide SECR disclosures.

Ouring the years 2021 end 2022, the first phase of the preparation of the greenhouse gas inventory was camed out,,
this stage Inciuded: training in the GHG protocol, data collection, visits and the deslgn of the tools to carry ‘Out the'
annualfnventor(es

Subsequent events
Information about subsequant events is presented in note 31.

Principal risks and uncertainties
Information about the Group's and the Company S pnm:lpal risks and unoenamt:esxls presented on pages 10 - 1173‘

S$172 Statement

. S172 Statement is presented on pages 12 - 13,
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

S s §

Set out below are the key operating fisks and uncertainties affecting the Group.

Margin risk

The revenues of the Group’s principal trading subs| diary EDEMSA and other entities within the Group, EDENOR and
HASA are subject to a regulated Slectricity | lariff ime set by the national and provincial Government, which is
revised on a specified periodic basns; This direcdy |mpacts the Group's profitability and its ability to fund its operating
costs and capital expenditure requ:rementsu Tar;frs apprcable for the year under review were insufficient to maintain
economic and financial sustamabnmy and the delay in thedimplementation of tariffs and the delay in the resolution of
previous disputes means the Group i$ fit nanaal&y expmed.,This remains a key risk as conunumg delays or shortfalls

’ﬁn tariff increases could put the Group into financial difﬁculhes, -

Mmgahon '

JThe Group seeks to mitigate these.risks by doseiy monttoring the fluctuations in key operatmg costs and by
o lmplementmg hedging strategies to miniriize the~impact on finandial performance as detailed in note 25. The Group

engages in regular presentations and negotlahons w;th the Regulator to advocate for necessary inflation and tariff

adjustments and seek resolutions to the ongoing tariff drsputes‘

The Group aims to settle its tariff freeze-related debt wllh CAMMESA arising from the energy purchases between
2013 and 2016, through the signing of the Deed Agreement with the SEN, the Province of Mendoza and the EPRE
an 28 December 2022. On the other hand, the d;sputes ansing from the Uneamed income during the same period
have been resolved through the sighing of the Sattiemant Agreement with the Government of the Province of Mendoza
on 3 January 2023.

Economic vulnerability and hyperinflation

The Argentine economy has expetignced slgngﬁcant volatility in recent decades; characteiised by periods of low or
negative growth, high levels of infiation and significant’ dépreciation of the Atgentune Pesog: which? fis the functidnal
currency of the Group’s Argentine operahons An the?iast 4 yearg;the Arger’itme Peso has experienced a raprd
depreciation against the U.S. dollarﬁand other major foreign currencies and as of JJuly 20181t qualified as a currency
of a hyperinflationary economy. Risifg costs and frozen tariffs are having serious adverse effects on the Group's

profitability, production expenditureinfrastructure iAvestment and abxhty to service forelgn currency debts;

Since September 2019, the Argentme Government has adopted a sefies of measures reins(atlng forefgn exehange
controls that limit the Group’s ability to access foreign currency and, .external financing, Through 2021, htgh mﬂatlon
levels and the Peso's depreciation remained;:These factors pose slgmf icant risks to the éGroup'sgquuld!ty and ab:llty to
access credit, capital markets and payment of goods that are necessary for the provusfon of the"service.x

Mitigation

The Group seeks to mitigate this risk through the strateg:c use of ﬂnancua!;mstruments denom[nated in foreign currency
(US dollar) as well as the purchase of inventory in advancer ﬁxsh their: pnces. The Grou Ls anatysmg different
measures aimed at mitigating the negatuve effects of this situation_on its finandial stmeture mmsmlsing the impact on
the sources of employment, the execution of the’ ‘investment plan;:and the carrylng out 5f the essential operatuon
maintenance and improvement-related works that are necessary to rnalntam the prov;sion of the public service of -
electricity distribution and electncity generatlon\ which i§ the Groups prifcipal acﬁvlty. ih a saﬁsfactory manner in .
terms of quality and safety. .
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Political and regulalory lnterventlons

“The Group's operations are based’: in Argenilna and are subject to Argentme laws and regulations. The Argentine

Government has historically exerc:sed sugmﬁcant;[nﬂuence over the economy promulgating numerous, far- reaching
regulations and reforms affectmg the economy, and electricity compames in particular. Amendments to laws and
regulatlons governing the Group's operatmg actlvmes or more stringentimplementation or interpretation of these laws
and regulations couid have a mater!afadverse impact on the Group,;

Mitigation

The Group,.ui ilises reputable tegai irepresentativesiin Argentlna to contlnuousty monitor the tegal and regulatory
regime. Per ydic meelmgs are held with Argentme tax adwsers 1o review fiscal changes and regulatory requirements,,
The updates are typically undertaken on a monlmy basls In addition, the Group is @ member of ADEERA {Asociacion
de Distribuidores, de Energla Eléctrica de ‘!a Republica Argentina) which consistently works with the Argentine
authorities to assast in the understanding of regulatory constrainls andin the modification of legislation designed to
clarify inconsistencies and interpretations of the laws .

Plantoperatingrisks .,
and generate electncny through plant outages or resmcﬁons on operations. The Group s assets have been in service
for a substantial, _amount of ime and agingi§ a sngniﬁcant factor in many areas,. A significant plant component faiture
or fallure of a ciiticalinon- -replaceable pfant’ ftem may’ “affect the operating lifetimé of the station.

Mmgalaon s .
The plan to mlugate lhe nsks assocaated with the fallure of an essenﬂal component in any of the Group's operating
assets involves a fisk-based p!ant ma[ntenanoe and replacement program. This program is designed to identify and
pnonuse maintenance and replacemem acuvmes based on the! gevel of risk posed by each component or system. By
lmplementmg a rlsk—based approach to maintenanoe and repiaoement sthe Group can ensure that critical components
#are inspected and malntalned more !requently‘ reducang the likelihood of unexpected failures. Additionally, the
program is momtored by regulatory bodies.,\mcludmg the ENRE and EPRE; to ensure compliance with industry
standards and reguiattons. This overslght helps to idenhfy any potential i§sues early on, allowmg for proactive
measures to be taken to prevent major failures; By nmpiementmg this plan; the Group can minimise the risk of plant
outages or restrictions on operations and ensure the operaling lffetime of its stations is maintained.

.
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172 STATEMENT

The | Directcts are required to explain how they consider the interests of key stakeholders and the broad matters set
out !n section 172(1) (A) to (F) of the Companies Act 2006 (‘S172’) when performing their duty to promote the success
of the Company and the Group under §172. This Includes considering the interest of other stakeholders which will
have an: smpact on the long-term success of the Company and the Group:

Th}s 5172 statement explains who the Company's and the Group's stakeholders’ groups are, their material issues
and how the D:rectors of Andina retate to them and their expectations, including the principal decigions made by the
Company and the Group during the financial year. The $172 statement focuses on matters of strategic importance to
Andinaséand the leval‘:of information disclosed is consistent with the size and the complexity of the business.

When, maklng decislons, each Director ensures that he/she acts in the way hefshe considers, in good faith, would
most: llkely promote the Company's and the Group's success for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing
so have regard (among other matters) to:

8§172(1) (A) The likely consequences of any decision in the long term

The Difectors understand Andina’s business and the evolving environment in whrch it operates, mcludmg the
chalienges of navigating through the political demsuons taken. by the Argentine Government resulting in continuous
changes to business rules. The Directors recognise how Andina‘s operations, particularly in Argentma are viewed by
different parts of society and that some decisions they take today may not align with all stakeholders' interests. Despite
thls.,,the Directors are mindful that their strategic decisions can have long (erm nmphcahons for the business and its
stakeholders ‘and these implications are carefully assessed.

During 2021 the company increased its investments: !n the distribution of efectricity in Argentina through the acquisition
of a 23.4% equity participation in South Amencan “Energy LLP, owner of Efpresa de Energla del Cono Sur SA
(EDELCOS), which has a 51% conlrolhng stake'in EDENOR, rasulting’in an® md;rect participation of 11.93% of the
stock and voting power of EDENOR, see mgre detallsiln note 15. This, sirategic, transforrnatnonal transactaon Aallows
Andina to further expand its regulated eteclrlcny asset base in Argentma providing etectncity distfibulion services to
about 3.6 million customers in Buenos Aires City and Mendoza Province.

172(1) (B) The interests of Andina's employees

Andina’s employees are core to the business and fundamental to its operahonal SUCCess: Sngmf icant effons are being
made to ensure that Andina remains a responsible employer when it comes to payrolF benefits, health, safety and a
positive working environment.

During 2021 due to Covid-19, taking care of employees’ health was a priority and additional health measures were
taken such as preventive care and vaccination campaigns, "delivery of personal care elements~ readjustment of
cleaning and disinfection procedures andimplementation of home-office working;«: "

The Group invests in its employees through;:

strict heaith and safety monllonng,»
technical and soft skills training:
scholarship plans;

communication apps;

surveys.

&1
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- 8172(1) (C) The need to fosterAndIna 's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others,

v Strong and mutually ‘beneficial re;ahonships with suppliérs, customers and govemmenls are fundamentat plliars for
relauonshlps : The ability to promote them effectwely is an important factor in the deéision to enter or malntam such
relationships, Some of these principles arels’

Customers
+ Regular monitoring of customer satesfactfon rates;
+ Faster response to customer calls,
* Implementation of new customer’ semce channels: WhatsApp.
+ Improvements® “Iin web pages, by lncorporatnng automations and new procedures.

Pertners and supphers
+ Tenders to ensure equal opportunmes for suppliers and the best commerclal»outcome for the business,;
+ Health and Safety control plans throughout the value cham

Govsmmenls and regulators
* _Permanent dialogue with the government regarding the tariff update and parlidpatuo i,
“interest to Andina and the communities;in which it operatesz

policy debates of

Soc:ely .
© «. Confinuous monitoring of envnronmentat management through annual envuronmental audits.
» Connection with IocaLoommun“mes through social media, community workshops and training.

* Sponsoring of chamable social plans

$§172(1) (D) The impact of Andina’s operations an the communlfy and the environment
Andina regularly consults local people and NGOs on the ways in which the Group’s actwmes couldimpact the local
community or the envirenment; The Group actively participates in numerous community pro;ects such as:

¢ PAS (Solidarity Help Program). to support teaching and assistance to 3 ,000+ chu!dren m low’income /
impoverished areas’

+ PLEC (Light at Home Program). since 2005 this program has helped 60,000+ people (12,500 famuhes) to

. access electricity in a safe and economically affordable way;

+ Alliances with organisations such as Junior Achievement, Fundacién Si_and FONBEC (Scholarsmps) to
support the education of young people from poor backgrounds and Fundacién ProVivienda Social to achigve
electrical inclusion and smart consumption in vulnerable neighborhoods.

+ Close co-operation with the Argentine Red Cross in the framework of the Covid-19 pandemic.

The Group ulilizes the Integrated Management System to ensure continuous monitoring of envuronmenlal,
management and ongoing compliance with ISO 8001 Quality Management and 1SC 14001 Env:ronmenmlf
Management. The Group is subject to annual external environmental audits certified by IRAM (National Institute of
Standardization and Certifications).

$172(1) (E) The desirability of Andina maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

The desirability of Andina to maintain its reputation for high standards of business conduct, translates to the Board of
Directors' intention to behave responsibly and ansure that the business operates in a responsible manner withifi the
high standards of business conduct and good governance.

Regular communication between the Board and the employees and effective, formall¥7 minuted Board Meelings ensure
that such standards are maintained. Where appropriate, independent Iegal advice s sought in order to support the
decnsmn -making process. #

S1 72(1) (F) The need to act fairly as between members of the Company and the Group

The Directors are responsible for choosing a course of actions that enables Andina to achieve its iong -term strategy;:-
taking into consideration the impact on stakeholders. In doing so, the Directors act fairly as between the Company's
and the Group's members but are nat required to balance the business interest with those of other stakeholders;!and
this can sometimes mean that certain stakeholder interests may not be fully aligned.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive
Javier Alvarez (Chalrman) P

Javier Alvarez joined the board on 6 October 2022: Javler.is an Agncultura! Enginger (Urﬂvarsidad Nacional del L‘noral ’

Argenhna) and has an MA in Environmental Politiw and Globallsa(ionA(Kings Co!!ege UK} ymh more than 28 years’
experience ‘in projec% development;- ‘“mvolvc?\g intemat;onal organisatlons,, national and local’;governments and
corporatrons (from sectors such as Oll & Gas, Agrlbusmess and Servroes),‘m Latin Amerfca-*Afnca:’Asna and Europe.
Heis currenﬂy the Chalrman of the Bnﬁsh Argentme Chamber of Commerce BACG;. based;in Londonaln 2012 Javier
“]oined Andes Energla plc, a listed company on the London Stock Exchange,.as a Ncn»Executlve Diractor of the Board
and contihued in the role of the renamed company.fPhoenlx Globa! Resources plc unm 2020\

Valeria Inés, de Oliveira Cézar (Chief Executive Officer)
Valeria de Oliveira Cézarjonned the board on 2@ January 2021; She graduated as an Economist from the Unrversidad
Nadona! de Rosari’o Later she obtafned a Masters degreefin Finance from the Tocuato D}'Tella Umversnty in Buenos

EDEMSA as Manager of Finance.

Neil Bleasdale (Executive Director)

Neil BEeasdale joined the board on 17 May 2013 He;i$ also the Chaliman and Chiaf Executive 0@0er of EDEMSA.
Neil i a busunessman and holds a B:A: (wlth horours) from the Umvé;rslty of Leedsy England. He alsb acts as a non-
executlve Directorrand alternate Birector of a number of other Argentine companies

Nicolds Mallo Huergo (Executive Director) -

Nicolds Mallo Huergo joined the board on 27 October 2021 He graduated as a lawyer from the Universidad Cattlica
Argentina in 1993 with a law degrae.dand obtained a Master in Law (LLM.) with honours at Northwestern University
School of Law, Chicago, U.S.A., in 1998,He was appointed to the National Courts of Buenos Aires, working as a clerk
between 1980 and 1993. He was admi Ao the Bar of the City of Buenos Aifes [ii February of 1994 and he is a
membar of the Coleguo de Abogados dé'la Ciudad de Buenos Aires::

Non-executive

Julian Collins {(Non-Executive Director)

Julian Collins joined the board on 12 June 2020. He, bnngs wuth htm extensive experience of workrng wu&h a number
of multi-national organizations and corporate entnﬁespln his previous company he was the Operations Manager
responsible for inventory, data processing and accounts for one of the world's leading computer accessory companies
with branches throughout Europe and the USAHe i is also a Ditector of a number of UK propenty compames

Marcelo Comba (Non-Executive Director)

Marcelo Comba joined the board on 17 May 2013: Marcelo graduated as a sollcftor from the Unlversnty of Busnos -

Alres in 1988 and became a Master i rn Business Law in 1994xAfter workrng in the legat departments of Siémens S.A.
and Ferrovias SAC, he has worked $ince 2002 as a Partner in the law f’rm of Aidar Bestene- Garcia Moreno &
Associates. He is also the former President of HASA.

Maria Fernanda Martinez (Non-Executive Dlrector)

Fernanda Martinez joined the board on 29 January 2021, She is an industrial Engineer who graduated from
Universidad Nacional de Cuyo, where she completed an Exchange program at the Center Arts et Métiers ParisTech
Bordeaux-Talece, obtaining expertise n Envtronmentai Process and Materials Engrneering for Sustainable
Developrnent She has a Postgraduate Degree in Projéct Management and Admin‘lstrati‘on. Wwith more than five years
of experience in the Renewable Energy sector, she cumently serves as EDEMSA’ Senior Anatysl in the area of
Development and Evaluation of Energy Projects.
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' Cecllla Aversa (Non‘Executlve Dlrector)
iCec:ha Aversa joined the board on 27 October 2021 .She has a Ph, D in Pouncal Sciences (Cathohc Umverssty-

£

of the Argentlne Republlc for more than a decade as Counselor for Internauonat Relat:ons In 2020, she assumed her
current rofe as Managmg Birector of Innovation at Integra Capltal S:A and became a Member of the Board of
Directors of Integra L;thmm

B¥iorder of the board

24 May 2023
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The Directors present thelf annual report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
Dscember 2021.

Principal activities
The Group is a Latln Ameican energy group, with electricity distribution as its principal activity and electncuty
generation interests in Argentina,

. Directors A
The Directors who heid office dunng the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as
follows;
Mr Javier Alvarez : (Appointed 6 October 2022)
Mr Jorge Rosenblut (Resigned 30 September 2022)
Mr Luis Alvarez Poli (Resigned 29 January 2021)

Mr Nei’}l Bleasdale
4 Mr Julian Collins :

Mr Marcelo Comba

Mr Carios Bastos (Resigned 29 January 2021)
Mrs Valeria Inés de Giivelra Cézar (Appointed 29 January 2021)
Mrs Maria Fernanda Marlmez (Appointed 29 January 2021)
Mr Ricardo Nicolas Mafio Huergo (Appointed 27 October 2021)
Mrs Cecilia Aversa {Appointed 27 October 2021)

7
Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 23.

No ordinary dividends were paid or proposed during the year (2020' US$nil). The Dnrectots do not recommend
payment of a dividend. .

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions
The Company has made qualifying third parly indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Dlrectors during the year.
These provisions remain in force at the reporting date and at the date of approval of the financial statements.

Financial instruments

Information about the Group's and the Company's financial instruments and fmancsai nsks management is includad in

note 25,

Disabled persons ’

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always ful:y; consrdered bearmg in mind the aptnudes of the

applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their -

employment within the Group continues and that the appropriate traihing is arranged. It is the potlcy of the Group that
the training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be‘identical to that of

other employees.

Employee involvement
The Group's pohcy ts 10 consult and di§cuss with employees, through umons,?staﬁ councnls and at mestings, mallars
likely to affect empioyees' interests:;

Information about matters of concern to employeses is given through information bulletms and reports which seek o

achieve a common awareness for all employees of the fi nancial and economic factors affectmg the Group's
performance.
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Future deve!opments
. lnformatuon about the Groups and Company’s future developments is presented’in the Strategic Report on pages 3 -
14.

Indapendent Auditors
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLE; have expressed theirw ngness to continue as auditors and a resolition
to reappaint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP wiﬂ be proposed at the forthoommg Annual General Meeting.

Going concern
The Directors have reviewed the cash posmon of the Group and the Company for a period to 30 June 2024 and

consider it approprlate that the Group and the Company financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis

for the reasons set out below.

At 31 Dacember 2021« the Group had net current habilmes of US$127.6 million and debt of US$12.9 million and the
Company had net curfent fiabilities of US$0:9 mtmon and debt of US$9.9 miflionz:

)] assessfng the Group’s and the Company s abititx to adopt the gomg concern basis, the Directors have assessed
the Group and the Company's abnmy to meet the{ ‘.ﬁebnlitues as they falf’ due; In the event that any liabilities could not
be met, the Directors could consider other fi nancung altemalwes such as the‘issuance of warrants and the sale of
mvestments as they have done prewous!y

The Directars have also reviewed the cash flow forecas@ to 30 June 2024 for the Group, taking into account tariff
adjustments currency fluctuations and scheduled borrow;ngs repayments;:and they note that the ability of the Group
to continue operating is dependent on its abnhty to agree a settlement plan for the payable balances with CAMMESA::

In 2021, the Company’s subsidiary EDEMSA whose principal activity'is electricity distribution in Argentina, reported
a loss for the year of US$19.6 rmlllon and had a net current Ilabmt!es position of US$126.1 million.

- As detailed in note 18fthe deiays and uncenamtues arismg from the |mptementatlon of the local tanff regime resulted
in EDEMSA defemng payments to its pnncfpal supplier CAMMESA; the state-owned electncuty wholesaler.\wath total
current outstandlng debts for amounts incurred after 2018~’amount|ng to US$118;2 m‘lllon at the reportiig date; of
which US$110.4 milliontis due !mmednately,g .

Managemem are currently negotiating the ‘Debt Regulanzauon Agreement’ with CAMMESA, .as requiied by the Deed
Agreement signed belween EDEMSA, EPRE; and the SEN on 29 December 2022; th mtemlon for thns iDebt

Regularization Agreementfis for EDEMSA and CAMMESA to agree a settlement plan for all carrent outslandm_ debts

for amounts incurred after 2018;between EDEMSA and CAMMESA; with an associated payment plan that Wilispread

payments over approx'{matetyi 86 months. However;as at the date of approval of these fi nanctaf statementssthe Debt -

Regularization Agreement has not been signed;; It such an agreement were not to be sfgned :CAMMESA would have
the right to demand the ocutstanding debt, and EDEMSA and the Group would not have the abxmy to pay,;

The outstandmg debt with CAMMESA: and the Group. inab’llty to settie this debt |ndicates the eXjstence of a matenall
uncertainty which may cast s;gniﬁcank doubt over the Group's ability to continué as a golng concern;:Based on the
current progress of the negotlauons wfth CAMMESA and the specuﬁc amendments {o the paymenl terms agreed the
Directors believe that the Group wm be able to meet ns oblngatlons as they fall due. Thus; the Directors confinue to
adopt the gomg cancern basis of accounting ifi praparing the consolidated ﬁnancia! statements;;

The Group fmancnal statements do notiinclude the adjustments that would result'if the Group was unable to conhnue
asa going concerny;
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B

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The Birectors are respon'_s: le for preparlng the Annual Report and the ﬁnancual statements in accordance with.
applicable law and regulat:ons .

£

Company taw requ:res the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the

Directors have prepared the Group and tHe Company financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted .

international accountfng standards:¥

Under company;]| law Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that lhey give a
true and fa:r view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.
In preparing the financial statements, the Dnrsctors are requxred to% .

. se!ect siltable accounting policies and, then apply them consistently;

hether apphcable UK-addpted' mternauonal accounting standards have been fo!lowed subject to any

depanures disclosed and explamed in the financial statements,}

« maké judgements and accounting estimates, thak are reasonable and prudentwand

» preparé the financiak: ‘statements on the gomg concern basis unless itis mappropnate to presume that the
Group and Company will contmue’in business.

The Directors are responsib!e for safeguardmg the assets of the Group and Company and hence for takmg reasonable
staps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The Difectors are a?so responsible for keeplng adequate accountlng records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Group's and Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the fif nanual posrtTon of
the Graup and Company and enable them to ensure that the fiianéial statements comply w:th the Companies Act
20065

Directors’ confirmations

In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors” Report;ts approved:
+ so far as the Director is aware, therg’is no relevant audit informauon of which the Group's and Company’s
auditors are unaware; and :
+ they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Birector ‘ih order to make themselves aware .
of any relevant audit information and to estabhsh that the Group's and Company’s audntors are aware of that
information.

L4

By arder of the board

viér Atvarez
Chairman
24 May 2023
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_Independent auditors’ report to the members

of Andlna PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Oplnion :

In our opinion:i:

Andina PLC’S Group ﬂnanéléi statements and Company financial statements (the "financial statements”) give a true and fair
- view of the state of the Group’'s and of the Compani\‘ affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of the Group's profit and the Group's
and Company's cash flows for the year then ended~‘
% the Group financiat'statements have been property prepared in accordance with UKsadopted international accounting standasds
as applied:in accordance with the provrslons of the Companies Act 2006;
»; the Company &nandal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounﬂng
standards; and
s thefi nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have autfited the financial statements, included Within tﬁ”e%nnua! :Report and Financial Statements (the “Annual Reporif), whtch
comprise? the Conso!ldated and Company statements of. fmanual posmon as at 31 December 2021; the Consolidated: income
statement, the Conso!}daled statement of r:omprehenﬁ'vs income, the Consolidated and Company statements of changes In equity;;
and the Consolrdated and Company slalements of cash flows for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements;’,
which include a descrfpln)n of the slgnlﬁoant awoun(rng p iies

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with »lntemalronal Stanéards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)?) and applicable law;Our

“responsibititie’s under ISAs (UK) are further descrlbed §n the Audntors responsubllmes for the audn of the ﬁnancaai statements secllon

of our report. We believe that the audlt evidence we have obtained Is sufficlent and approprrate to provrde a basis for our opinion,

: Independence

We remained lndapendent of the Group in accordance wllh the ethicat requrremems that are relevant to our audit of the ﬁnancral
statements i the UK, wiiich fiicludes the FRC's Elhical Standard,,and we have fulfifisd our other ethical responsibrlmes in
accordance wrth these requlremems.‘

Material uncertainty related to going concern

{n forming our opinion on the fgnandal statements, which is not modrﬁedﬂwe have considered the adequacy of the drsc!osure made
in note 1.4 to the finandial statements concerning the Group s ablility to continue as a going concern; The delays and uncertainties
arigiiig from the implementation of the local tariff regime has resulted in the subsidlary EDEMSA delemng payments to its princxpat
supplier CAMMESA‘ the stale-owned elecicity wholesalerﬁwnth the total outstandlng current debt amounting to USS 118.2 mrllron
at the rgporting date’ of which US$ 110:4 m%on is due Immedvately Currently/the Group does not have sufﬂclam,nquud resources
to Payiseule its obligations with CAMM,ESA., Management are currently * negot;anng the f,Oebt Regularfzauon Agreement"
with CAMMESA, as requiréd by the Dead Agreement slgned between EDEMSA, EPRE, and the SEN on 29 December 2022;:the
intention for this ‘Debt Regularization Agreement’ is for EDEMSA and CAMMESA (o agree 3 settiement plan. for all outstanding
current dabts betwesn EDEMSA and CAMMESA with an associated payment plan. However, at the date of approval of
these financial sta(emenls, the Dabt. Regularlzation Agreement has not been sagned. u such an agreement were not to be
signed, CAMMESA would ‘have the right to demaitd the ourslandmg debt« and EDEMSA and the Group would not have the ablmy
to payz ’

These conditmns along wnh the other matters explamed fn note 14 to lheﬁﬂnand‘al statements. Indicate the existence of a
material uncenalnly which may cast. sngmﬁcan! doubt about the Groups abihty to contifue as a gomg concern;;The fi nancial;
statements do not«mdude the adjustments that would resutt ifthe Group were unable to continue as a gomg concern,
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In auditing the financial statements, we have conduded that the Directorsuse of the going concern basis of accounting’in the
preparation of the ﬂnan'g!ag statements {$ approprigte.
A is 4a

o s &
Our responsibilities and the (eswmmili?ies of the Directors with respect {o going concern are dascribed in the relevant sections of
this repont.

"
Reporﬂng on other information

report thereon The Directors are respous”zble for the omer)‘}(nfomahnn. <Qur opﬁon on the finandial statements does not cover the
other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audk :opinion or;;except to the extent othen:ise explthy stated in this
report, any form of assurance thereon,

in eonnedlon with our auditof the fi nancial statemems"our responszb:ﬁ\y i§'to read the other'mformauon and, in doing so, conslder
whelher the other information is matedally mconslstenl wilth the financial statemenls or our knwlegge obtained in the audit, or
otherwme appears to be materially misstatedu:If we ldenufy an apparent mater}hl lnconslstancy or matedal misstatement;swe are
required to perform prooedures to conclude whether theresls a mate%?faﬁl,;misstalemenl of the ﬁnanaal statements or a mate)ﬁal

misstatement of the othef infarmation. If, based on the work we have perfermed; we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other lnformauon,\we are reqmred to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responslb:lxt(es. o

With respect to the Strategi¢ Report and Dtrectors‘;Repon we also considered whether the disclosures requlred by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been includedz

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit; the Companies Act 2006 mqqires us also to report certain opinions and
matters as described belovq,,

Strategic Report and Directors” Report

In aur opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit. the information given in the Strategic Repon and Directors’
Report for the year ended 31 December 2021 Is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements. .

In light of the knowltedge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit
we did not identify any materiat misstataments in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responslbilities’?for the financial statements and the audit

Respons:b ittes of the Directors for the financial statements

As explamed more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibifities in respect of the financial statements, the Directors are
respansible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view. The Direclors are aiso responsible for such internat control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financlal statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's ability to continue
as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concemn and using the golng concem basis of accounting
unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or {0 cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so. '
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Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtalii reasonable assurance about whether the fn‘iand’al statements as a whole are free from material
" misstatement, whether due to fraud or errof; and to issue an auditors' repon thatncludes our opinion, Reasonable assurance s a

hxgh tevel of assumnge butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted, !n accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material

misstatement when' n existsy Misstatements can arise from fraud or emor and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they coukj teasonably be expected lo‘mﬂuence the economic dedsions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

lrregulamigs, Includjng fmud.jare thstances of non~compﬁance with.! taws and regulatro .\ We design procedures
responsibilities, outlined above‘ fo detect malerial mlsstalements in respecl of irregulamles. including fraud. The extenl lo which our

ALK

procedures are capable of deteclmg;srregularitles, mduding fraudyis dslal!ed below.s

Based on our underslandlng of the Group and industry;we Menuﬁed that the pnndpal ‘fisks of non- comphanoe wﬂh laws and
regulations related to breaches of energy market regulalions in the ;unsdlchons in which the Group ogerates, 1ax and employmenl
Jaws in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, g and unethical and prohibited business praclrces,and we considered the extent
to which non- compl{ance mIght have a materiaheffec( on the financial slatemanls- We also considerad those laws and regulatlons
that have a direct Impam an the ﬁnancua[ statements such as the Compamgs Act 2006:\We evaluated management’s incentives
and opponunlties for fraudulent man{pulauon of the ﬁnanclai statements (inctudlng the risk of override of controls); and determined
that the pﬂncupal isks were related to the posting of lnappropr:ate ;aumal emries to increase revenue or reduce expenditure, and

management bias iﬁ aééoﬁnﬁng estimatevsj} Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

#  Inquiries with the Directors and managemanl;regardlng consideration of known or suspected instances of non—complzanoe weth
laws and regulations%
LS Challengmg assump(lons and judgements made by management in respect of critical aocounhng )udgements and significant
accounting estlmates’
Review of minutes of meellngs of the Board of DnrectorS“
& Inspeciion of supposting Jﬁ“cumentatlon.xwhere appropiiatéiand
- Identifying and testin aumal entms. in parucu!ar any journal enlries posted with cedain unusual aoccunt combmatnons

sy

,Théré are inherent"a'llmitations‘*in the audit procedures described above: We are less:fikély to become aware of:lnstances of non=s
compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to even!s and transactions reflected in the financlal statements::
Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is hlgher than the risk of not detecting cne resulting from error,
as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements i’ located on the FRC's website at,a
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This dascription forms part of our auditors’ reporl.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company,s members as a body ln accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, In gnvrng these opnmons:gaocept or assume
responsib'hty for any other purpose or to any other person to whom 1his report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

(:;3
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Other required reporting

Companles Act 2006 exception reporting V3
Under the Companies Act 2008 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

« we have not oblained all the Information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recelved from branches not visited by us: o #,

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Timothy éA}}gsler (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors -
London

25 May 2023
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“ANDINA PLC

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021 2020

N US$000 ~ Us$'000
Revenue & 227,532
Cost of sales 4(166,540)
Gross profit "’ 60,982
Dlslnbutlon costs (22,012)
Administrative expenses ©(23,499)
Other operating'income 4,954
Operating profit / (loss) gB,z 17,435 {8,969)
Gain on disposal of controlling iterest e , B 679 .
Loss on fingncial instruments measured at fair: vatue ' &
" through proftt ‘ordoss ‘;;&1 0.411) (2.646)
Finance'income . 9 N 7,826 11,270
- Finance costs _ 10 (57 478) (50,569)
Hypannnauom&npact ' 1.21 - 751,315 29,086
Share of profitsiin associates . v 14 36,635 -
Profit / (loss) before taxation 45,903 (21,818)
". - Income tax (charge)lcredi‘i“: : »1;! (30,444): 872"
Profit/ (loss) for the financia! year 16,459 (20,946)
Proﬁt 1 (loss) for the ﬂnancialxyear is attributable to"‘ i
- Ownars of the parent company : 25,049 (10,570)
.sNon-controlling ifterests : (9,590) (10,376)

16,459 {20,946)

........

The acoompany?ng notes on pages 32 - 83 form an mtegtal part of these fanancfal statements;

&,
¥




ANDINA PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Profit / (loss) for the financial year

Other comprehensive income / (expense)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or foss
Translation differences -

Actuarial loss on defined benefit pens?%n schemes (*)
Tax relating to other comprehensive gain / (loss)

Other comprehensive income / (expense) for the year

Total comprehensive income / (expenss) for the year

Total comprehensive income / (expense) for the year'is
attributable to:
- ¢ Owners of the parent company

- Non-controlling interests

iNate: 2021 % 2020
Us$'000 Us$'000

15,459 (20,946)

RF 12,006 (2,011)
(845) (344)

311 (36)

11,472 (2,391)

2 ,

26,931 (23;337)

30,444 (11.510)

(3.513) (11,827)

26,931 (23,337)

(*) For the year-ended 31 December 2021, includes amounts of USD${1 million) and USDSQ;gmiﬁfon; fela{ffiwg to

subsidiaries and associates;respectively.,

The accompanying notes on pages 32 — 83 form an integral part of these financial statement

!ﬁ
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" ANDINA PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

X3

Non-current assets

Investment in associates and subsidiaries

Intangible assets .
Property. plant and equipment
nght of use assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

. Short term investments

Cash and cash equ?}aféms

Total agsets

" Current liabilities

Trade and other payab&es
Bonowlngs

Leases

Provns‘ions

Det” ned beneIlI pensson kab‘hiiy

9

4 Non~current Ilahlllﬂes

Bonowmgs

Leases

Provisions

Deferred tax liability
Defined benefit pension ifability

Total liabilities

" Netassets

Note

14
12
13
20
16
17

16

17

14
1.12

18
19
20
21
23

18
19
20
21
22
23

2021 2020
US$'000 US$000
53,700 -
. 7,673
246,675 198.724
1,170
p 3.514 3725
1,420 26
305,309 210,218
3.917 3,234
49,436 48,788
62;181 54,918
5:820 10,229
121,364 117,169
426,663 - 327,387
(239,486)
(76)
(168)
8.073)
(1,108)
2a8,911)
(19 981)
12,867)
(578) "
(139) (266}
(54,453) (33,383)
(4.222) (3.456)
(92,240) (62,663)
(341,151) (270,883)
85,512 56,504,
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ANDINA PLC

- CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
b
- Note 2021 2020
® uss$'o00 Us$'000
Equity ’ : .
Share capital 24 24,473 20,852
Share premium 24 7,665 4,758
Translation reserve ‘ ' 24 34;482 28,889
Merger reserve : 24 ' 40,432 40432
Accumulated losses . . 24 ¥(45 :862) (7o¢71 3)
Equity attfibutable to owners of the parent company ' 61,180 - 24 218
Non-controlling interests . . 24,332 ) 32,286
Total equity 85,512 56,604

The accompanying notes on pages 32 - 83 form an integral part of these ﬁnancia:ffstatements.

The financial statements on pages 23 to 83 were approved by the Board of Directors and aulhonsed for issue

on 24 May 2023 and are signed onfits behalf by¥ V!s

-
b4
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
Note 2021 2020
: ’ uss$'oco Us$'000
Non-current assets
investments in asso’{:}'a"tes and subsidiaries 14 86,253 34,831
Trade and other recéivables 17 2,354 5,458
: 88,607 40,289
Current assets
Trade and other receivables . 17 142 455
Cash and cash equivalents 1.12 1 18 =
) : 143 473
Total assets 88,750 40,762
Current liabilities . .
Trade and other payables 18 {1.029) {1,061)
Borrowings B 19 - {2,813)
, (1.029) (3.874)
Non-current liabllities :
" Trade and other payabies 18 {3,620) {4,199)
Borrowings ' 18 {9,856) -
. {13,476} {4,199)
Total liabilities : (14,505) {8,073)
Net assets . 74,245 32,689
Equity
Share capital 24 24,473 20:852
Share premium : : T 24 7,655 4,758
Translation raserve - 24 (2,646) (2,718)
Merger reserve 24 40,432 40,432
Other comprehensive ncome 24 151 ) -
Retained eammgs/(accumulated losses) , 24 4,180 {30,637)
Total equity 74,245 32,689

it

As permitted by s408 Companies Act 2006,,the Company has not presented its own
notes;The Company's profxt for the year was US$34; 817‘000“’(2020 US$620: 000

& statement and relatgd:
The accompanying notes on pages 32 — 83 form an'integral part of these financial statements.
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Dxrectors and authorised forissue on 24 May 2023 and are -

sugned on'its behalf by

L

Ja);lter A
Chairman :
Company Registration No. 8095058
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

. FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Share ‘Share  Translation Merger  Accumulated Totai Non- Total equity

capital premium reserve reserve losses controlling controlling
interest interest .

) Us$'000 USs$'000 Us$'000  US$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'o00 Uss$000 US$'000
Balance at 1 January 2020 14,904 - 29,635 40,432 (59,949) 25,022 44,113 69,135
Year ended 31 December 2020:

Loss for the year - - @ - (10,570) (10,570) (10,376) (20,946)
Other comprebenswe expensery .

Translation differences {1 - - (746) - i (746) {1,265) (2,011}
Actuarial loss on defined beneﬁt plans - - - - (184) (194) (186) (380}
Total other h - - . {746) - {10,764) (11510) ;. (11,827} (23,337)

5948 - 4758 PRI - - 10,706 - 10,708

Balance at 31 December 2020 20,852 4,758 28,889 40,432 (70,713) 24,218 32,286 56,504
Year ended 31 December 2021: .

Profit/ (foss) for the year - - 2 - 25,049 25,049 (9,590) 15,459
Other comprehensive‘income™

Translation differences (3 - - 5,563 - - 5,593 6.413 12,008
Actuarial loss aon defined benefit plans - - - - - (198) (198) (336) (534)
Total other comprehensive income /

(expense) for the year - - 5,593 - 24,851 30,444 {3,513) 26,931
Capital increase (4) 3,621 2,897 - - - 6,518 - 6518
Deconsolidation ) - - - - - - (4.441) (4,441) ™
Balance at 31 December 2021 24,473 7,655 34,482 40,432 (45,862) . 61,180 24,332 85,512
The accompanying notes on pages 32 - 83 form an integral part of these financial statements. “ -

(1) Includes hyperinfiation impact of US$30 million, net of US$32 million translation:impact on opening balances at the year end exchange rate.
(2) Capital Increase (see note 24).

(3) Includes hyperinflation impact of US$23 million, net of US$16 million ion impact on apening atthe year end exchange rate. .
(4) Capital Increase (see note 24). . .z

i
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Accumulated

Share Other
Share premium Translation Merger - ‘{losses) / .
capital reserve reserve comprel'\enslve retained Tvotalpqunty
income " .
- eamings .

US$'000 Us$'000 - uss'oo0 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
Balance at 1 January 2020 - (3,714) 40,432 - (51 ,zs'i) 20,365
Year ended 31 December 2020: .
Profit for the year ., .. o - - - . 620 - 620
Other comprehensive incomes, .
Translation differences 255 - 998 - - - 998
Tota! comprehensive income - - 998 - - 620 1,618
Capitafincrease) 5,948 4,758 - - - - 10,706
Balance at 31 December 2020 20,852 4,758 (2,716) 40432 - (30,637) ... 32,689
Year ended 31 December 2021
Profit for the year - - - - - 34,817 34,817
Other comprehensive incomg:
Translation differences - - *(460) . . 5302 - 70
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plans - - - - - 151 - 151
Total comprehensive income - - (460} - 681 34,817 35,038
Capitalincrease;f2); 3621 2,897 N - - - 6,518
Balance at 31 December 2021 24,473 7,656 (3.176) 40,432 681 4,180 74,245

The accompanying notes on pages 32 — 83 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(1) Capital Increase (see note 24).
(2) Capitat Increase (see note 24),,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

PN A — XS e x.,\n_v;‘f:'_}‘_;z I s P PN Y R T e CEONERS R e
} 2021 2020
i Note “*US$'000 US$'000
Cash flows from operating actwltles "
Cash generated from operations 28 38,720 31,430 o
lgteresl received 9 3,859 4,342
“Net cash genemted from operating activities 42,5679 35,772
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 13 (10:694) (9.454)

. Purchase of current investments 14 (45 005) (31, 023) .
Sale of current investments 14 7,179 . 9032
Purchase of interest in associate W..‘(u 040).::. R~
Net cash used in investing activities (62,560) (31,445)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 10,053 = 2283
Repayment of borrowings {2,053) (497
Praceeds from share issuance’ 6,518 -

Net cash generated from financing activities 14,518 179
Nat (decrease)/increase in cash and cash 2
equivalents {5,463) 4,508
Cash and cash equivalents at begmrgng of year 112 10,229 7,851
Effect of foreign exchange rates 1.24 1,054 (2,128)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ’ 5,820 10,229
#The accompany‘iﬁg notes on pages*32 - 83 form arﬁiﬁtegral part of these financial statements:
Significant non-cash transactions
The s'lgnfﬁ%ant non-cash transactions in 2021 and 2020 are deta;ﬁed below:
. Note 2021 2020
Us$'600 Us$‘000
Transfer of inventory to property, plant and eqUipment 16 3,553 2,258
Debt cancellation for transfer of HDS 19 2,813 -
* Dbt capitalization 19 o 10,706
{ o :
:,

P



'ANDINA PLC

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

e

2021 2020
Note US$'000 uss'ooo
Cash ﬁows from operating activities
Cash (usedm) 't generated from operations 29 {436) 23
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating
activities (436) 23
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of {fiterest i assgéjaté (14040} 2
Net cash used in investing activities (14,040) 2
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds froffi’borrowlfigs 9,963 -
Repayment of borrowings (2,012) (24)
Capital'increase 6,518 =
P Net cash generated from / {used in) financing activities 14,459 (24)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ’ n 1
Cash and cash equgvalents at begknmng of year 18 19
o Cash and cash equivalents at énd’ of year : 1 18

The aocompanyi;r;ig r;gtes on pages 32 - 83 form an‘integral part of these financial statements,
Significant non-cash transactions

The $igdificant n?g:@asp transadibns(’;i;n 2021 or 2020 are detailed below:’

Note — 2021 2020

sapd US$'000 US$'000

Debt cancellation for transfer of DS shares 19 2,813 w
Other payables senlemant‘m 1 696 i
Debt capitailsauon - 19 _ & - .

(13 Canceliavon of tha debts and credils betwsen AESA snd Ancina

@&
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ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+EOR.THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMB!

2021

1

11

1.2

1.3

Accounting policies

General information n
Andma Pic! (’the Company‘lisa publ ' limited company, Jimited by sharas.,dom:c‘!ed and; incorpcrated in England
and Wales The registered office is. 1-3 Charter Square.QSheff eld“Umled ngdom S 4HS.4Tha company i$ a
slocal»energygbeader with two of thé'fargest electricity unlmes in terms of market sharé in Argenﬁna.@

Basis of preparation

poltcxes have been consmtently applied to allflhe years presented unless otherwise staled

The consolidated and Company ﬁnanclal statements have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted
«mtemat:onal*accountmg standards and with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as apphcab!e to
companies reporting under those standards;

Th"-o;onsohdated financial statements have been prepared under the hlstonc cost conventi”on* except for the
ﬁ'n dlal assets and financial' llablmfes measured at falrfvalue through prdfit or floss and the net assets and results
of the Group's operations in Argentiniajan economy that i$ considered hyperﬁ\ﬂaﬁonary. whfch are expressediin
terms of the measuring unit current at the closmg date of the reporting period;:

_The company’s functmnal currency was mamtamed in the currency of the primary e economic envcronment m which
'.Tt operates whlch %is Pounds Steﬂ!ng. The presentation currency for the consolidated and Company fmanclai

statements as us dollars, See note 11320 for [more datanls about funcﬁonal,g and presentation currency.LThe
consofidated financial statéments are prepared ih US doliafs (US$)krounded to the nearest thousand. =

b
The preparation of financial statements’ in conformity with the apphcabge framework detaiied above requires
management to make judgements,. estimales and assumpﬁons that affect the appllcahon of pollaes and reported
amounts of assets and |IBbl|ltl8$l ihcome and expenses. The estimates and assoGiated assumptions are based
on historical experience and factors that are beélieved to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resuits of
which form the basis of making® judgements about carrying values of assets and {iabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources; Actual results may, ¢ differ from these estimates. The are%s’?nvolvmg a higher degree
of judgement or complexity; or where assumptions and esﬁ’mates are s¥gmﬁcam to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 3.

The estimates and underlying assumptt?)ns are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are reoogmsed in the period in whith the oslimata is revised'if the reviglon only affects that pefiod or in the period
of revision and future periods if the revision affects both cument and futire penods

Basis of consolidation
The oonsolidated financial statements Enclude the financial statements of Andina and its subsididries.

Subsidiaries are entities which are controlled by the Group; Control exists when the Group 1s exposed to, or has
rights 1o, variable returns fromiitsiinvoivement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities Vof the entity:

The results of subsidiaries aequnred or d:sposed of during the year are mcludedmn the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of aoqutsmon or up to the effective date of disposal, where appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the ﬁnancnal statements of subs:chaﬂes to. br?ng the accounting
policies used into line with those used by the GroupAll intra;group transactions, balancesy mcorne and expenses
are eliminated on consolidaﬂo_qui

Non-controlling &?\lerests in the net assets of subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s interest
therein. Non- controllmg interests conSist of the, amount of those'interests at the date of the original business
combination together with the non—contro!llng mterests "share of profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income since the date of control. The non—controllfng ihterest of shareholders in an acquisition is

initially measured at their proportwn of the net fagr valie of the assets, I|ab|lmes and contingent liabilities
recognised.




'ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
1 Accounting policies . ) (Continued)

1.3 Basis of consolidéﬂon {Continued)

Changes in interests in subsidiaries without changes in control

Trensactions with non-controllmg interests that do_not result in a loss of control are recorded as equity
transacucns ‘i.e., as transactions with shareholders i m their capac:ty as such; The value recorded corresponds
to the dn‘fere ce between the fair value of the consideration paid andlor received and the proportion acquired
and/or trans(eued of the accounted value of the net assets of the subsndtary

Sale of subsidiaries with loss of control

When the Grat es control over a subsidiary, the subs;dlary ts no langer consolidated and any retained
interestiin the ty i$ remeasured to its fair value on the date on which control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently agcounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition,

any amounts prewously recognisedin other comprehensive income with respect to the subsidiary are recorded
asifthe Group had directly sold the rélated assets or liabilities. This accounting treatment may cause the amounts
already racognised in other comprehensive income to be reclassified in the income statement.

T
D

. 1.4 Golng concern

constder it appropriate ‘that the Group and the Company ﬁnancual ‘statements are prepared on the going concern
ba for the reasons set out below

Ry

At 31 Decembigr 2021, the Group had net current liabilities of US$1 27.6 million and debt of US$12.9 million and
. the Company had net curren! hablhtles of US$0.9 million and debt of US$9.9 million.

!n assessmg the Group S and the Company's absltly to adopt the gomg concern basis, the Directors have assessed
the Group 's and the Company's abimy to meet their habuhhes as they fall due. In the event that any liabilities could
not be met the Directors could consfder other fi inancing altematzves such as the issuance of warrants and the sale
of lnvestments as they have done prevuously,

The dii'ectcrs have also reviewed the cash flow forecasts for the Group, tafi%ng into account tariff adjusiments,
currency fluctuations and scheduled borrowings repayments, and they note that the ability of the Group to
continue operating is dependent on its ability to agree a setﬂement plan for the payable balances with CAMMESA.

»tn 2021, the Company’s subsidiary EDEMSA, whose principal activity is electricity distribution in Argentina,
reported a”toss for the year of US$19 6 millnon and had a net current liabilities position of US$126.1 million.

As detailed in note 18:the delays and uncerainties ausmg from the implementation of the local tariff regima
resulted “in EDEMSA deferring payments to its principal supplier CAMMESA, the state-owned electricity
whotesaier with total currenl outstanding debts for amounts (ncurred after 2018, amounting to US$118.2 million
atthe reporbng date, of whach US$110.4 miliion is due |mmedtate|y

Management are currently negotiating the 'Debt Regularization Agreement’ with CAMMESA, as required by the
Deed Agreement signed between EDEMSAZEPRE, and the SEN on 28 December 2022; the intention for this
@ebt Regulanzation Agreement is for EDEMSA and CAMMESA toc agree a settlement plan for ali current
outstanding debts for amounts™incurred after 2018, between EDEMSA and CAMMESA, with an associated
payment plan that wnll‘ l:spread payments aver approximately 96 months. However, as at the date of approval of
these'fi nanaal statements.,the Debt Regufanzauon Agreement has not been slgned If such an agreement were
not to be srgned CAMMESA would have the right to demand the outstanding debt, and EDEMSA and the Group
would not have the abltlty to pay.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) : F
~FOR.THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021, ... . . _ oo o oo o
.1 Accounting policies o (Continued)
1.4 Gblng concern : : (Cont!nued)

The autstanding debt with CAMMESA.,;and the Group's mab?lrty to settte\thls debt cmd«:att-;s the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast sigriificant doubt oveF theé Group's ability to continue as a gding conoemy

Based on the current progress of the negoliaﬁons with CAMMESA and the speclﬁc amendments to the payment
terms agreed, the Directors believe that the Group Wil be able to meetgns obugangns as they fall due, Thus, the
Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of accountinglin préparing the consolidatéd financial
statements. The Group ﬂnanclat statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the Group was
unable to continue as a going concern.

Revenue
Revenue relates mainly to electnc«ly dlstnbutlon services~

The Group supplies electricity to residential and business customers in Mendoza, Argentma« The vast malomy
of contractual energy supply arrangements have no fixed durauon require no minimum consumption by the
customer and can be terrmnated by éither party at any times The Group has detem'dned that no enforceable
nghts and obligations exist at“inception of the contract and arise only once the Group i$ the legal’ supplier of
energy to the customer The parformanoe obl:gahon 4s the supply of energy over the contractual terthe

In respect of energy supply contractsi;the Group considers that it has the right to consideration from the customer
for an amount that corresponds dlrectly with the value delivered to the customer through their consumption. Itis
the‘judgement of the Group that the customer consumes energy as the Group supplies and, as a result, the
Group recognises revenue for the amount which the entity has a right to invoice. The Group’s assessment of the
amount that'it'has a right to invoice includes an assessment of energy supplied to customers between the date
of the last meter reading and the year end (known as unread revenue)

Unread electricity comprises unbiiled revenue and is estimated through the billing systems, using historical
consumptlon patterns, on a customer-by-customer basls taking into account weather patterns, load forecasts
continus 16 be compared to system estimates between the balance sheet date and the finalization of |he
accounts;

The Group holds a number of energy supply power contracts that specnfy a minimum consumption volume over
a speciﬁed contractual term; ;The transaction price for these contracts is the minimum supply volume multiplied .
by the piice determined by EPRE per unit of energy.gRevenue from the sale of additional volumes is considered
to. be vafiable and not included in the transaction price. Revenue for these contracts continues to be recognised
as'invdiced:; o

Other opefagj_ng income )

Other operating income primarily arises from ancillary services provided to third parties such as new connections,
reconnecnonswnghts of use on lpoies, transportahon of electricity to other distribution companles and is
racognised at the time the service IS provid Svided .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
' FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1 - Accounting poficies ' _ ) _ {Continued)

1.6 Intangible assets
Concession assels .
Concession assets represent the amount paid for the concession rights and are related to the electricity
distribution (see note 12).

Concession assets acquired are stated at fair value at the date of acquusmon Amomsatvon is charged on a
straight-line basis as follows: 5

Concession 30 years (EDEMSA)

The impairment thereof is reviewed annually or more frequently if there are events or circumstances that
indicate a potential impairment.

1.7 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are shown at cost less subsequent depreciation. Costs |nclude expenditures that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

-“

& ~ Subsequent expenditure generally leads to the recognition of a separate asset as Property, plant and equipment,
EL when it is probable that future aconomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
e “the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during

the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of each asset to its residual
value over its estimated useful life, as follows:

u

,, " *[Land and buidings 30 to 50 years
’ Machinery and equipment up to 25 years
‘i " [Networks and power transformers 30 to 50 years
-'_”’ ransformers 30 to 40 years

Land and work-in-progress included within ‘Work in progress and other assets’ are not depreciated. Other assets
include IT and communication equipment, furniture and other goods. )
The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying value of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

1.8 Non-current investments
 In its separate financial stataments the Company measures its investments in subsnd:anes and associates as
foliows: :

- controlled companies {subsidiaries) are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less
any provision for impairment,

- investments in associates are measured initially at cost and subsequently adjusted to reflect the investor's
share of the net assets of the associate.

o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
«FOR.THE.YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER.2021 ..
1 Accounting policles (Continued)
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1.9 Borrowing costs related to non-current assets
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
quaﬁfymg assets which are assets that nscessarily take.a substantial period of ime to get ready for, their intended
usé’or sale; are added to the cost of those assets, until the assets are substantially ready for theifintended use
or sale.

The commencement date for capltalisation is when (a) the Group incurs expend:tures for the qualifying asset®
{bYitincurs borrowing costszand (c) it undertakes activitigs that are necessary to prepare the asset for its jritended
use or sale; All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the penodbin which they are" ‘incurred; 5\

110 lmpa:rment of non-current assets
The carrying amount of the Group;s non-current assets ss compared to the. recoverable amount of the assets
whenever events or changes'in circumstances indicate that the net book value may not be recoverab!e ;The
recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell, Value in use'ig’ eshmated by
reference to the net present value of expected future cash fiows of the relevant cash generating unit:}lf the
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount of an asset, an impairment loss is recognised, the rewsed
carrymg amounts are amortised:in iine with the Group’s accounting policy. A previously reoognised mpanrment
loss is reversed if the recoverable amount increases as a result of a reversal of the, oondmons that ongmal@y
resulted In the impairment. The reversal is recogfised in the income statement and*&s @mned to the carr?lng
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recogiiised i the
prlor reporting petiods::

1.11 Inventories i

Raw materials and consumables are measured at the} lower of cost and net reai‘sable va!ue. Cost is determined

using the welghled average cost formula methodﬁCIassnf cation Es performed based on average consumption of .

these assets'in recent years;:The Group has no h;story of obso!ete or sfow- movmg inventory

1.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents ‘include call deposits held with banks and other short-term ﬁighly Ilquid investments
w;th original maturities of 3 months or less;,

The Group . The Company
2021 2020 2021 ’ 2020
' Uss'ooo uss$'o0o Us$'000 Us$'000
Cash at bank and in hand - 947 2091 . 1 18
Short term deposits \ . 4873 . 8,138 - ) -
- 5,820 10,229 L I 18

1.13 Einancjal instruments -, . 2
Group becomes a party to the contractual provi%mns of the instrument, ananc;al assets and financial liabilities
are only oﬁ‘set and the net,amount reported in the consohdated statement of ﬁnanclal posttion and statement of
comprehenswe income when there is a currently enforceable Iega[%qght toﬂoffset the reé&”gnised amounts and-
the Group‘intends to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and'liabifity sgmultaneousiy.a ’
F'nancial assets and financial llabtllt‘ es are inm' Ity measured at fair valuej Transacllon costs that are dlrectly
attributable to the acquisition or’ Yissue of financial;assets and ﬁnant:lal;!iablt ies (other than fi nancnal assets and .
fmanmal lidbiliias at fair value through prof t or Ios e added to or deducted from the fair vatue of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropnate .on in wrecognltfoanransacﬂon costs dxrectiy Sttributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or ﬁnancual Iiabllmes at falr value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
‘Jn proftkor loss,




ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR.THE YEAR ENDED 31.DECEMBER 2021

- 1Accounﬂng policies _ S : : (Continued)
1.13 Financial lnotmmonts » - {Continued)
Financial assets

All recognlsed financlal assets are measured subsequengiy n thejr entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
dapending on the €lassification of the financial assets. o

Classification of financial assets

Fi nanccal assets that meet the following condh:ons are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective fhterest rate method’ .

* The ﬂnandal assetiis held within a business model whose ob;ectlve’fs to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash! flows: and, -

« The contractual terms of the financia! asset give fise on specified.dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of pnncnpal and interest on the principal amount outstandmg

Financia), assets are classified and measured at fa;r value through profit or loss when the asset does not meet
the cntena to be measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. Such assets
are carﬁ‘ed at lﬁ?r value with gains or losses recognised in the income statement.

The Group does not hold any fmanc&al assets that meet the conditions for subsequent recognition at fair value
through other comprehenswe income (*FVTOCH).

Impalrmont of financial assets

-The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credil losses ("ECL") on financial assets that are measured
at amoitised cost wmch oompnse mainly trade rec&ivables. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at
each reporttng date, to reﬁect changes in credit nsk sifice mmal recognition of the respective financial instrument.
The Group rec.ogmses hfetrme ECL on trade recewables *’l’he expected credut Iosses on these financial assets
are estlmated us;ng a provision matfix based on the Group s hlstonaal credit loss expserience, adjusted for factors
that are speolfzc to the debtors,zgeneral economlc condltions and an assessment of both the current as well:as
the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting dale,,mclurf ng fime value of money where appropriate’:

Derecognition of financial assets ‘

The, Group derecogniges a finanéial asset only when the contractual ights to the cash flows from the asset
exprre\?«or when it transfers the financlal’ asset and substantiaily, gall the nsks; and rewards of ownership, of the
asset to another entuty»c If the Group nenher transfers nor retains substanuaily all the risks and rewards of
ownershlp and contmues 1o control the transferred asset,the Group recognises its retained mterest an the asset
and an’associated llabmty for amounts:it may have to’ pay, if the Group retains substantially al! the risks and
rewards of ownership ofa transferred fmancral asset; the Group continues to recogn‘ise the financial asset and
aiso recoghises a oollateralnzed borroang for the proceeds rece;ved,

Financial liabllities -
The classtﬁcatton ofrﬁnanctal habrlmes at al recogﬁ.lf[on dependsﬂ on the purpose for whkch the ﬁnancnalhabihty
was lssuedsand s characteristics: All purchases of ﬁnanc:al Ifabnlmes are recorded on the date on which the
Group beoomes party to the contractual uurements of thex financial Irabnlityn Unless otherwise mdccated the
carryTQQ amounts of the Groups financi
Jiabilities consTst only of financial | lla {ites measured at amontised cost;
’0

Flnanclal liabilitles measured subsoquently at amortised cost " .
Financiat hablllt?és that are not (i) contingent consideration of an acquier’in a business combinatio
tradmg, or i) designated as,at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amomsed cost using the effeciive interest
methodz Thé’ Groups financial hab:ﬁtneé measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other payables;iand
loans and borrowmgs. .The effective interest method'is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a fmancnal
asset/liabkihty,yand of allocatlng?nlerest incomalexpense over the retevant period. . The effec fiterest rate'is, lhe
rate that ‘discounts estimated futura cash receiptsipayments through the' expected “lite” of the financial
asserlhabtl:ty ory,where appropﬂate» a shorter periads;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 oo .o o
1 Accounting policies W/ (Contlﬁued)
1.13 Financial instruments {Continued)

o Derecognition of financial liabilities o
""" A financial liability (in whole or¥in part)ii§ derecognised when the Group has exiihguisShed ‘its contractual!
o obligations, it expires or is cancelled? Any gain or loss on derecogmuon is taken to the statement of
- comprehensive income.

Fair value measurement hierarchy

The Group classifies its financialassets and financial Ifabilities measured at fa;r value using a fair vatue h:erarchy
that reflects the significance of the? inputs usedrm making the fair value measurement {note 25) The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:: .

= Quoted prices (unad;usted) in act!ve markets for'identical assets or ﬂabikt!es (Leve! 1)} T
.+ Inputs other than quoted | pnoes* duded wgthm Level 1'that are obsarvab!e for the assetor. Liabiifty Sither
directly (i.e. as pncesj ‘oftindirec e.‘ -derived from prices) (leve! 2),
+ Inputs for the asset or; Ilabillty that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) {Level
% 3)

The level in the fair value hierarchy wnhm the ﬁnanoial asset orfi nancnai Ilablhty 38 determmed on the basis of the
lowest level input that is stgmﬁcent to the falr value measurement.

1.14 Equity instruments &
An equity instrument is any contract that evsdences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deductmg
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments” |ssued by the Company are recorded as the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs. Equity instrumentsfissued by the Company for non-cash consideration are recorded at the
market value of the equity instrument at the date of i issue; net of difect issue costs.

1.16 Taxation
The income tax expense for the period compfises current and deferred income tax. Tax is recognlsed in the
income statement, except to the extent that i{ relates 1o items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recogmsed in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively. o
Current tax
The current income tax charge i8 ca!culated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date ln;Argentij' -Management pericdically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which appllcable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. it establishes
provisions where appropriate on tha basis of amounts expected to be pald to the tax authorities.

1
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ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

.FOR. THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1Accountlng pohcies : B (Cor'ntlnyued}u A

1.16

147

1.15 Taxation i “ (Continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred‘income tax i§ recogmsed usfng the Habtlity method, on temporary dtﬁerences arising between the tax
bases of asset d-ttabtlrtfes and, thetr carrytng\amounts in_the consotrdated financial statements. However,
deferred tax’lA bihfies are not recogmsed i they anse from the" mrtratﬂregogmtton of goodwill; deferred income tax”
] caunted forff; r?ées from initial recognition of an asset or:fabiity/n a transaction other than a business
combtnation_ that at the time_of the transactton affects nelther accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tak Is determined usrng tax rates tand laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
baianoe sheet date and are expected to appty when the retated deferred it moome tax asset is reslised or the
deferred tncome tax lrabrhty is settled

Deferred ‘fncome tax assets are recognised to the extent that it*is probable that future taxable profit will be
availabe agatnst which the temporary differences can be uttlised Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
temparary di?ferenoe 8 control!ed by t.he Group and 'tth probabte that the temporary difference will not reverse
jtn the foreseeable futureeii

Deferred’income tax assets and tiabttities are offset when there is a l," atly enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax ltabthﬁas and when the deferredincome tax assels and liabilities relate to income taxes
,revned by the same taxatlo: authortty on either the same laxable entity or different taxable entities where thers 18
an (ntentton to settle the balanoes on a net bas:s,

Provisions
Provislons for légatl and other ctarms are recogmsed when the Group has a present legal or conslructlve
obligation as a result of past events and;,tt is more Itkety than not that an outﬂow of resources will be required to
settte the obltgatron and the amount has besen ret' abiy esttmated Prov(sions are not recognised for future
operatlng losses;

Provisions are measured at the present varue of management's best esiimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the reportmg ‘date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects
current market assessments of the time vatue of money and the increases specrﬁc 1o the liability.

Employee benefits "

The costs of short-term employee benefits are recogmsed as a trablttty and an expense, unless those costs are
nequIred to be recognrsed as part of the cost of stock or non-current assets; 3

The gost of any unused holtday entittement is recogntsedg‘m the penod”’tn which the employees sarvices are
received.

Termination benefits are recognised :mmedtately as an expense when the company is demonstrably comniftted
to term:nate the employmant of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

Long term benefits for years of service

The Group grants compensation to emptoyees covered. by the cof!ectfve bargaining agreement for the‘industry
labor union, who have completed twenty twanty-five, thirty and thirty-five years of service,; Thisiis pafd Yin the
form of a special remuneration equtvatent to the monthly salary of the month in which the number of years of
service conditions is met, Thts amount doubles when the employee reaches forty years of servlceu.

The cost of provrdrng this benefit iS recognised as a i Wit‘y and an expense over the period"“in wﬁi&h the

empfoyee s services are received,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

{Continued)

1.17 Employee benefits ‘ ' (Continued)

Long term benefits for retirement or disability

The Group has a def}ned benefit| plan,, This represents accrued benefits to be paid to employees covered by the
collec{we bargammg agresment for the industry labor’ union ifor staff reaching retirement age or retsnng asa
result’of disabili ty prlor to th;s*

The cost of provrdmg benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the pmjected unit credlt method
and is based on actuatial advlce,

S &, ‘)s .
The change m the net defined beneﬁt Ineblhty ammg from employee service durlng the year is recognised as an
emplayee cost,. The cost of plan mtroduchons. benefit changes, ~settlements and curta‘ilments is, recognrsed as
an expense’in measurmg prof t ‘or loss ifi the period:in which it arises. .

The net interest elementlns determmed by. mulf‘ piymg the net defined benefi l Ilablhly by the dlggount rate, tak’ing
“into account any changes in the net defined benefit| haﬁillty durtng the period as a result of contribution and benefit
payments. The net mterest':‘s recogmsed;‘ proftt or loss as other finance income or cost.

Remeasurement changes éomprlse actuariaf gains and IossesJ the effect of the asset ceilifig and the return on

the net defined beneﬂl fiabi ty@xcludmg amounts included in net interest. These are recognised immediately‘in -

othet. comprehensnve “income’in the penodvin which they occur and are not reclassified to profit and‘loss in
subsequent periods. w

b

At anoeptron the company asgesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease within the scope of IFRS 16‘

contract is, or contanns, a lease If: the contract conveys the Jight to control the use of an wenuﬁed asset for'a

period of time' in exchange for considerat:on Where a langib!e asset’is aoqu“ired through a lease; the company

recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date, Right-of-use assets are
\inoluded wilhin property, p|ant and equipment.

Lease habllmes are measured at the present vafue of the contractual payments due to the lessor qyer the| lease
: with the disoount rate determined by rele"rence to the rate:inherent to the lease uniess mls3ls not readnly
inabley in which case the Group's incremental; borrovs“ Ing rate on the commencement of thé:lease'is used;,
Ee lease payments are only included in the measurement of, the !ease ﬁabmwf they depend on.an mdgx

or rate’in such casesjthe initial measurement of the lease liablllty assumes the variable element will remain
- unchanged thraughout* the lease term. Other variable lease payments are expensed in the penod to which they
relate..

itial recognfuon the carrying value of the lease l"abs!ity also mdude
+ amounts, expected to be payable under any res:duaj value guaranteel R
- the exercise prlce of any purchase option granteddin favour of the Group}‘cf' l |s reasonably certain to
assess that optfonxand
¢ any penames payable for terminating the lease, lf the term of the lease has been esﬁmated based on
termination option being exercised.
Rightiof-use assets are'fnitially measured by the amount of the jease liablhty, reduoed for anyllease incentive
recéived, and increased by, .
» lease payments made on or before the commencement of the lease;
+ initigfidirect costs’ incurred and
- the amount of any provision recognised when the Group ls contractuaily requnred to d;smantley remove
or restore the:feased asset,
Subsequent to ns iﬁihal measurement;:lease fiabilities increase as a resuit of interests charged at a constant rate
on the outstandlng balance and are reduced after lease payments are made. .

it
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

| ,,FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1 Accounting pollcies ' - . {Continued)

1.18 Leases ' . {Continued)

1.19

1.20

B

o

R;ght-of-use assels are amorﬁsed ona strarghl-ﬁne basrs over the remaining term of the lease.

When the Group revises its est;mates on the term of any: lease, it:adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability
to reflect the payments to be made over the revised term, which are discounted at the same discount rate that
was applked on the lease commencement, The carrying value of lease Ilabllitles is similarly revised when the
vanab!e etement of future lease paymems such Aas arate or mdex. 'is raviced. In both cases an equivalent
ad;us(ment 1§ made to the carrymg value of the right-of-use asset wvth the revised carrying amount amontised
over the temafnlng (revysed) !ease term

Rentals payabte under short-term low value leases, mcludmg any lease incentiVes received, are charged to profit
orlossona straaght-hne bagis over the tarm of the relevant lease, except when another systematic basis is more
representatwe of the tb’ne pattern in which the economic benefits of the ieased asset are consumed.

Detetmmmg whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and
requires an assessment of whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets and }(or the arrangement conveys a'fight to use the asset.

Government grants
Govarnment grants are recognised at their farr‘ va!ue when there; ls reasonable certainty that those grants will be
collected and that the Group will meet all the coriditions establishéd.

Government grants receivediin réiation to the purchase of non-current assets are deducted from the cost of such
assets, These assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives based on their net acquisition cost.

Foreign exchange
Functlonal and. pmsentatlon currency

“The hdividual financial statements of each Group company are maintained in the currency of the primary

economic environment in which it operates (its functional currency). which in the case of the Argentinean
comparues is lhe Argentlne Peso and in the case of the Company is Pounds Sterhng For the purposes of the

;;;;;

oompanson with other utility companies.

The financial statements are presenteci"in US$ and the exchange rates used were;’

USS$ per£ 1 ARS per US$ 1

Average Exchange Rate

CIqsIng Exchange Rate 102;74

Functlonaf currency of a hyperinfiationary economy .

According to IAS 29, the financial statements of an entity that reports T the currency of a hypennﬂat:onary
economy must b reportediih terms of the current measuring unit at the balance sheet date; regard!ess of whether
they are based on the historical cost method or the current cost method;; \&Comparahve ftgures for prior period(s)
should be restated’ mto the same current measuring unit. Restatements’ are made by apptylng a géneral price
index. items such as monetary items that are already stated at the measuring unit'at the balance sheset date are
not restated. Other items are restated based on the change in the general price‘index between the date those
items were acquired or incurred and the balance sheet date: The components of the income statement must be

. presented in the updated measuring unit on the date of presentation of the financial statements by applying a

general price index from the date on which the income and expenses were accounted,.

b
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
+FOR.THE YEAR.ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021, ...

1 Accounting policles . (Comlnued)
3]

1.20 Foreign exchange {Continued)
In order to determine whether an economy is conszdered hypemnﬂattonary accordmg to IAS 29;the Standard
details a series of elements to be considered which; finclude an aocumulated*\nﬂation rate’in three years that
approxtmates or exceeds 100%! Henoe accordmg to IAS 28, the Argentine eoonomy must be considered as
hyperinflationary since 1 Jufy 20185

s LErE oy EEEISENY oy
T —r

The inflation adjustment ofijnitial prices was computed taknng into consideratgon the mdncas estabusi;gd by the
FACPCE (Argentine Federaﬁon of' Professicnaf‘ Counciisfsn Economic Sciences) based on the price index
pulehed by the National Staushm Institul (lNDEC),

The price mdiees used for the restatement of the flnanéé'l statements were.z

» 2020 = 3885 8826
+ 2021 = 682.4575

The main procedures to determme the mﬂ tion adjistment are the following

. All monetary assets and tlab[m s"tn the statement of fi nanc}atg posmon are not adjusted,‘ sihce the
‘ﬁnancual“ tatements are alreadyaw re-expressed at the year-end exchange rate, ,

. Non-monetary assets and’ habWes that were eomputed at cost piices at thé date of the statement of
financial position and the capatal assots are adjlisted based on the correspondgng adjustment
coefficients.

. All the elements in the income statement are updated applying the relevant convers:on factor.vw

US$51.32 million (2020 US$29 09 million).
On the initial adjustment forinflation, the capitat asset accounts were adjusted as follows:
* The capital was adjusted from the date of the previous hyper inflationary period of Argentina,

Transactlons and balances

enuty s funchonal currency (forelgn currencies) are recorded ét the exchange tates prevatting on the dates of the
transactions. On each reporting date, monetary items denominated in foreign currenciés are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary ilems carried at fair value denommateq (g forexgn currencies -
are retranslated at the rates prevamng on the date on which the falr value was determined: The exchange
differenoes that arise are:included in the income statement for the penod

Foreign subsidlaries conversion

The results and financial positions of the Company’s subsidiafies that have a funt:tlona!~ currency different from
the Company's currency are converted to the reporting currency as follows, depsnding on whether the functional -
currency is in a hyperinflationary environment or not.

Entities with non-hyperinflationary functional currency

* Assets and liabilities of each statement of financial position presented are converted at the exchange
rate of the closing date of the statement of financial position.

» The share capital of each statement of financial? position presented is converted at the - historical
exchange rate.

+ Profits and losses’in the income statement are converted at the annual average exchange rate (when
the average exchange rate doas not represent a reasonable approximation to the accumulated effect of
the transaction exchange rates, the axchange rate at the date of the transaction or monthly averages’
are used).

» All exchange rate differences arising from this are accounted for in other ccmprehsnsive incomei

« Gains and losses derived from the conversion of the opening net assets of the Company at prevathng
exchange rates are transferred to the translation reserve.

Q &
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NOTES TOTHEF INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

.FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021, .. .. . . . ... |
1 Accounting policies i o ‘ v (Cnntinued) i
1.20 Foreign exchange ‘ : {Continued)

Subsidiaries with h yparlnﬂaﬂonary funcrlonal currency

+ Assets, liabilities and capital from the statements of financial posfﬁon »as well as profit and loss from the
statement of i mcome,zare converted at the exchange rate on the closing date of the statement of fi nancnal 3
position, after béing adjusted to the functionalicurrency. ~

« Assets, liabiities; capital profits and;losses of the comparative penod are kept in accordance with the
amounts obtained;in the conversion of the previous financial year. Sald amounts are not adjusted to the
fol?owmg exchange rates because the Company presents its financial information in US dollars, a nod=& =
hypermﬂatnonary currency;,

1.21 Finance income,.
F‘nance incame is accrued on a tzme basisiby reference to the prmc?pal outslandmg and the effective interest
rate app!icab!e

2 Change in accounting policy

A number of new and amended standards and interpretations Ssued by IASB have bacome effective for the first
time for fifiancial periods begQ g on (or after) 1 January 2021. None of these new and amended standards
and’ mterpretatsons had a significant effect on the Company because they are either not relevant to the
Company's aclivities or require accountmg which i§ consistent with the Company's current accounting policies.

New standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted

There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been issued by the
IASB that are effective in_ futute accountlng periods and whlch have not been adopted early. None of these are
‘expectad to have a sngmﬂcant effect on the Company. in pamcular

(AS 1 Presentation of Financjal Statements (Classification of Liablllﬁes as Current and Non-Current)

?3 IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Li’a'bili(ies and Contingent Assets {Sets out how to consider the cost of
- fulfiliing a contract to classify it as Onerous Contracts)

o IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (Sets out pnnclples for the recognmow measurement presentatuon and

Tra

sure of insurance contracts

IAS 12:%lncome Taxt: {sels out how to account the déferred tax on transactions such as leases and

decommiissioning obl;gahonsi

% Amendments to IAS 8 "Accountmg Palicies, Changes in Aocounung ‘Estimates and Erors (Sels
differences between accounting policies and changesdn accounting estimates, since it will depand on
them whigther they will be applied correctly retrospectively or prospectlvely)

3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the appﬁcatlon of the Group'’s accounlmg policies, the directors are requued to make, )udgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrylng amount of assels and liabilities that are not read’ ily apparent from other
sources,;The eslimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are oons?dered to be relevant. Actuat results may differ from these esumates.

The estimates and underlymg assumptions are reviewed on an ongging basns.,Revuscons to accounting esttmates
are recogmsed 1h the period in whiich.the estimate is revised when the revision affects orily that period, or in the
period of the revision and future penods when the revision affects both current and futurs penods* -

&
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)‘ '
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202 T ——
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3 Judgements and key sources of estlmatlon uncértamty

wnw

(Conllnued)

Judgement: Investments in Hidroeléctrica del Sur S.A. and South American Energy LLP

Investment in Hidroeléctrica del Sur S.A, * :
On 25 February 2021, Andina Electricidad S.A. (AESA) transferred 50%%of the shares it owned lﬁ Hidrolectrica
del Sur S.A. (HDS) to South American Energy Development LLC tSAED) by virtue of & par_ti ldebt cancellahon
agreement. After the transfer, the Company's interest’in the shares'of HDS reduced from 80% to 40%;“and thus
lost the Company lost control of HDS and, as a result, ceased oonsokdating the results of HDS,,

IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements” defines controi as encomipassing three distinct pﬁndp]es, whfbh fs
present,iidentify the existence of control by an investor over an,@nvesteeﬁhenee formmg a parent-subsndi’ary
relationship. The principles are:

1. Power over the mvestee:i
2. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its lnvo!vement in ihe |nvestee. and
3. The ability to use its power over the mveslee to affect the amount of the fivestof's retumns.

An investor has power over an; investee when the investor has exlstmg nghts that give it the cument ability to -

direct the relevant actnvuhes (i }the acu‘\”atfes that significantly affect the mvestee s returns.)

WYY

¢« AESA has no power over the investee because AESA only has a 40% interest in the shares of HDS and
there is no oon(ractual agreement between AESA and SAED to control HDS

e  The relevant decisions are made by the HDS Board of Directors whﬁch‘ made upof5 reguiar membaearsy
the Board of Directors meets reguiany and adopts resolutions by a sjmple majority of votes;

e AESA is not exposed, or has nghtsu to variable returns from‘ttsg[nvolvement with the investes because
there is no agreement that eslabhshes the fight to variable | retums

e AESA does not have the abxhty to affect the amount of the’ mvestor‘s returns because AESA only has a
40% intaerest in the shares of HDS and'it cannot make relevant demsxons o>

As the Comipany is not exposed to vafiable returns of HDSthe consoﬂdahon principles do not apply and we
consider itappropriate to account for the mvestmentm HDS as an equnty-accounted investment from 25 February
2021,,gsven we have significant influence over the, enmy We do not consider the results of HDS from 1 January -
2021'to 25 Fabruary 2025 1o be material to consolidate.

Ipvestment in SAE LLP

As at 31 December 2021, the Company hasa 23,,4% interestin South Amencan Energy LLP (SAELLP), fi nanced
through capital contributions and loan agreements “The Company has a 23; 4%‘"1nd

jrec( interest in Energia del
Cono Sur S.A. (EDELCOS), which'ls 100% oontroiled by SAE LLP and an 13;¢ ndirect interest in EDENOR.

The results of SAE LLP, EDELCOS and EDENOR are not consohdaled wnhin the Andina PLC group
consolidated financial statements, as the Company is not exposed to the var]abte returns of SAE LLP. We
consider it appropriate to account for the fivestment in SAE LLP as an equnty—accounted investment, given we
have significant influence over the entity.

As outfined in the LLP Members' Agreemen‘t%

* SAE LLP decisions (relevant and non-relevant) are by majority ifi the Member$ meetings; the Mambers

having 70% of the members presef?k
¢ The Company is not exposed to, or does not have rights to the variable returns from its involvement in
the investee; the Company does not have the ability to affect the amount of the investor’s retumns.

5
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. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR.THE YEAR ENDED .31 DECEMBER 2021

3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty o h . S H(Confinued)

Key sources of estimation uncertalnty
The estimates and assumptions which have a srgmfrcant rlsk of causing a materia[ ad;ustment to the carrying
amount of assets and Irabllitres are as follows-

Canying value of.the Company’s investments and the Group/s tangible and lntanglble assets
Estrmated useful/lives and residuaﬁ values are reviewed annually, taking into account prices prevailing at each
reponing date, The carrying vaiues of tangibte and’ mtanglble asséls a"f also reviewed for impairment when there
has been an event or a change in the clrcumsianoes that wouid’ mdncate that the carrylng amount might not be
~ recoverable:: An lmpairment loss'is recognlsed for the amounit by whrch the asset’s carrylng'value exceeds its
reooverabie amount;, The recoverable amounts the hrghar of an asset's fair value less the cost to sell and the value
inuse, Fair va)ue i€ determmed as the amount that woutd be obtained from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length
transsctton.

The valiietin use is determined usiiig }he present valye of the future cash flows expected to be. derived from an
asset OF cesh-generatmg unitiyThe calculatron of estimated future cash flows and residual vaiues is based on
reasonabte management estimates and is therefore subjective: Operating and economic assumptions that could
affect the valuat&on of the assets usrng discounted cash flow models are regularly revtewad and updated as part of
Jhe monltonng of the  operational and financial’ performance and the forecasting processes of the Group. Judgement
I required to determine if operating and economic changes are s;gmﬁcant and impact the potential parformance of
san asset ora cash-generatmg unit and, thefefore.idetermhe whether they are an rndicatron of an rmpanrmenl or an
rmpa:rment reversal: The key assumptfons have been includediin note 13.

The vague in use of the Company’s investmentsijs determined usrng the present value of the future cash flows
expected to be derived from the cash-generatmg umt.-sThe calculation of estimated future cash flows and residual
values I8 based on reasonable management estimates andiis therefore sub;ective +The assumptions utilised in
determimng the vatuerm use are cons;stent wnh those described above

- Employee benefits
The Group’ recogmses provisrons for benefhs based on years of service and benefits for retirement or d[sablllty that
“includes management‘s beét estimate of cenain variabies that may not ultimately match the amounts actually paed
at the end of service;;The key assumpﬁ‘ons are wage increases; employee turnover, mortality rate and discount
Jate,Past ’experfence and actuarial tables of mortality are used to make the estimate. For further detaxls refer to
‘note 23; -

Impairment of financial assets
The- af!owance for the |mpa\{rment of accounts recéivable is assessed based on the delinquent ba!ancea- whiéh
oomprlses all such debt arismg from the bms for electrlcny consumptlon of small.demand (T1) and medi’um-demand
(T2);:The Company's management records an allowance by apptym?; to the dehnquent balances of edch customer
category an uncolleciible rate that is determined according to each customer category, based on the hlstoncal
comparison of collections made, ,

Additionally;;and faced wrth temporary andlor excepttonal srtuanonsvthe Company's management may redefifie
the amount of the allowance; specsfy{ng and supporting the cmena used in aY’ the cases.

The Company has performed a revfew of the ﬂ‘nandairassets mcurrently measures and classifies at fair value
through profit or loss or at amortiséd cost and has concluded that they meet the conditions to mamtam theif
classification.

5
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3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertalnty , .(Continued)
Contingencies and provisions for Iawsults <,

5, The Company is a party to several complaihts, Iawsults and other_ Iegal prooeedmgsasxmdudlng customer clafms«s
The Company's potential liability with respect ta such clalms4 lawsuits and legat‘proceed!ngs may not be accurately
estimated. The Company’s management..wnh the assistance ofsits legai)adwsors, penodncally analyses the status
of each significant matter angd, evaluates ‘the Companys potent&al financial exposure: If the*{oss derwing from a
complaint or legal proceedmg‘is considered probabfe and the amount can be reasonably esﬁmated, :a provisnon is
recorded. .

ERE

chmpany S Imgatuon and settlement strategues These estimates are mfamly made by the, Company s management "
However, if management's estimates proved wrongjithe current provlscons oouid be: madequate and result in &

. *charge to profits that could have an effect on the Statements of Fmancnal Posshon‘ Comprehengive Income (Loss)
Changes in Equity and Cash Flowsp

4 Revenue “
2021 2020
uss'coo - - us$'0co
Revenue analysed by class of business
Electricity distribution . 227,532 185,447
Electricity generation - 3:567
Other T e i . 276
' N ) ¥ 227532 189,280 -
The Group's revenue arises enfirely within Argentina.
8 prperaﬁng %roﬂtl(loss)
2021 2020
us$'000 Uss$'000
Operating profi t/(!oss) for the year is stated after chargingi; w e
Depreciation of owned property:plant and equipment e . 10,9 9 9,253
Amomsahon of intangible assets' - . 318

(re 7y

rt relates to the concession assetsl ) i

&

J
22
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSA(CONTINUED)

,FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
6 Employees A

o

APLTY

The average momh[y number of personsf(includ{r“xg dtrec(ors} employed by the Group and.Company during
the year was:s )

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Number Number Number Number
Selling . ' 156 156 Z
Techmcal L . .389 399 : k3
Adrﬁihlstrahon . 154 191 - -

Total 699 746 o)

E

Their aggregate remuneration compriseds
' Group

Company
) : 2021 2020 2021 2020
% Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 uUs$’'000
Wages and salariés 27,368 23,403 - -
Social security costs 6,835 5,798 - v
34,203 29,201 = -
7 . Auditors’ remuneration
' o 2021 2020
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and associates: uss$'c00 US$'000
For audit serwces
Audlt of the fi nancg{al statements of the Group and Compar\y 223 130
Audlt of;the financial statements of the Company's substduar(es - 169 160
392 290
For“othof services "
 Audit-related assurance senﬁces 1 1
Taxation oompltance services 5
o . 6 7
8 - Directors’ remuneration
2021 2020
e US$'000 Us$'000
Remuneration for qualifying services 2 113 480

The Birectors” remuneration disclosed above is not paid by the Company. The remuneration of the directors
amounting to $11 3271«335 paid by EDEMSA, a related Group entity. No recharges are made to the Company,

Remuneration dis¢losed abovs fricludes the following amounts paid to the highest paid director:

2021 2020
Us$'000 Us$'000
¢ Remuneration for qualufymg services 8 146

The remuneration of the highest paid dlrecior is pald by EDEMSA a related Group entuty;

o
‘lo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) v
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ®
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9 Finance income
2021 2020
US$'000 US$'000
ER .
Interest income ) 3;859 4,342
A .
Gain on debt mocifficahon : - zi 1,817
Exchange gam ) 3,967 5,111
EN ' 7.826 11,270

The galn on debt modification is the gairi arisifg from the forgiveness of interest on the debt with SAED at the time of
entering'into the debt canoeﬂatlon agreement explamed in note 19

10 Finance costs o
: 2021 2020

US$'000 uUs$'000

Interest on borrowings 2:601 3;443
Exchange loss 2,049 5431
Commercial interest 52,826 - 41,895
57,476 50,569

Commercial interast represents interest on EDEMSA's debt wzth CAMMESA. these*‘interes(s do not generate cash ﬂow,%
see note 18 fo: more detail.on CAMMESA's debts ;. '

11 Income tax charge/(credit)

2021 2020
Us$'000 Us$'ooo
Current tax
Corporation tax on profit or loss for the current year ) 9,374 800
Deferred tax .
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 21,070 (1:672) -
Total tax charge / (credit) 30,444 (872)

The actual charge/(credit) for the year can be reoond}ed to the expected charge/(credit) for the year based on the
profit or Ioss and the standard rate of tax as followss

2021 - 2020

Us$'000 uSs$°'000

Profit / (Loss) before taxation 45,903 : (21,818)
Expected tax charge/(credit) based on the standard rate of corporalion %

tax in, Argentina of 35% (2020730%) 1806 . (654

Unutilised tax losses carried forward {i§921) (94)

Share of proﬁts in assaciates w0 j 42~787) -

Other,permanen! differences., - 282

Hypefinﬂation impact (acx:ordnng to accounhng pohc:es) 8; 588 (3.126)

Hyparinflation impact (according to tax laws) » 20,264 8,611

&

Taxation charge/(credit) 30:444 (872)
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“NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
11 Income tax charge/{credit) : o , ~ ' (Continued)

In addition to the amount charged to the income statement, the fcllow]ng amounts relating to tax have been
recognised directly in other comprehensive income:
2021 2020

uss‘ooc Us$'000

Deferred tax arising on: -
Actuarial differences recognlsed as other comprehenswe lncome‘,' (loss) {311) 36

a) Minimum Notional Income Tax

The Group was liable to pay a minimum notional income tax at the .applicable tax rate, of 1% caLculated on the
value of fixed and current assets at the reporting date; The minimum notienat income tax' wasin addmon to
corporation tax and the Group's tax liability for each financial year was the hlgher of the minifum notional‘income
tax and the corporation tax for the year. Income tax can be offset against this tax. In addltlon, any, payment of this
tax, not offset by income tax, would be treated as a payment on account of i mcome tax computable fora maximum
period of ten years. The Group recognised the tax on notional presumed i income earned-in previous years as a
credit, considering that it would offset future taxable income.

In 2019, the application of the minimum notional income tax was repeéiéd for years beginning on or after 1 January
2019. However, the credit of USD $0.06 million at the year end (note 22),: ts astimated to be used as a pamal.ﬂ‘
payment of corporation tax in the next fiscal year.

b) Submiission of iIncome tax presentation corresponding to FY2021

During fiscal year 2022, management of the only controlled-tradling subs&diary, EDEMSA, has detided to apply an
alternative methodology to determine the current incoms tax and accordingly-filed with the Argentine Tax Authority
the income tax return for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2021, applying the systemic and comprehensive
inflation adjustment mechanism and updating the tax loss carry forwards corresponding to the fiscal periods 2018
and 2019 following the methodology provided in Article 25 of the Income Tax Law (announced text in 2019).

The determination of the current incéme tax through the aforementioned mechanism implied that the tax to be pald
was AR$0.8 million using all of the accumulated tax losses carried forward with a nominal value of AR$1,726 million
(AR$4,217 million updated in accordance with the mechanism described in the previous paragraph).

The non-application of the aforementioned mechanisms and using the total accumulated nominal tax carried
forward losses would have implied that the tax to be paid amounted to AR$869 million. In this scenario, the effective
rate to be paid would have resuited in a substantial portion of the income obtained by EDEMSA being paid in tax
~ and would have exceeded a reasonable limit of taxation; as a result, in the opinion of EDEMSA's tax and legal
advisors this would constitute an assumption of confiscation, an assumption that at the date of issuance of these
Financial Statements has not been validated or challenged by the Argentine Tax Authority or by higher courts?
Together with the aforementioned income tax prasantation, a multinote form was presented to the Tax Authority in
which the application of the mechanisms was reported, arguing that the effective tax rate would represent a
percentage that would exceed the reasonable limits of taxation, setting up a situation of confiscation, in vicfation of
art, 17 of the National Constitution {according to doctrine of the judgment “"Candy S.A. ¢/AFIP and another protection
_action”, judgment of 07/03/2009, Judgments 332:1571, and subsequent precedents).

The aforementioned legal doctrine of the National Supreme Court is fully applicable to the paricular case of
EDEMSA, since the application of the regulations do not allow the application of the integral and systematic inflation
adjustment, as happened in the "Candy case”, recognising that the totality of the inflationary effect on its tax balance
would cause the Company to pay taxes on fictitious income.

Notwithstanding what is detailed in the previous paragraph, and given the existing background, during the fiscal

year 2022, EDEMSA decided to determine and file the income tax for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2021
considering the aforementioned adjustmer_\t mechanisms, considering that, the Argentine Tax Authority could

L34
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11 Income tax charge/(credit)

(Continu:‘d)

challenge the presentation and said challenge could be validated by, higher courts because,there xs naQ unlform
jiifisprudence to date that irrefutably vatidates the taxpayer's posiuo ‘this sense‘, EDEMSA's Board of Di‘rectors
has reassessed the fiscal year 2022; together with jits tax adwsors _considering the charactelfstfcs of -the.
presentation,the existfhg background and the analysis that the directors made i ina tumely mannarand ‘has decaded“
based on the ‘opirilon of their jegal and tax advisors, that there are. so!id techiical arguments which support the’
mechamsms adopted by the’ subsidiary :In the event of the matter golng to the court a favorab!e resolution for
EDEMSASis considered probabte As of the date of issuance of these Finanetal Statements“EDEMSA has not
reoeéved any challenge or formal rejéction by the Tax Authonty’E

c) Argentine tax reforms

The enactment of Law 27, 430 hwch was promulgated by the Argentine Congress on 29 December 2017 in the
context of the tax reform, establishes the followmg rules for the application of the mﬂaﬁon adjustmentiniincome tax
(i) the update. of the cost for goods acqulred or‘investments, made in the fiscal years that begln as.of 1 January
2018 consfdering the percentage variatnons of the CP) pmvided by the Naﬂonal Institute of Stafistic and Census
;(!NDEC) and'{iij the application of the ad}ustment set forth'in Title Vi of the Income Tax Law when a percentage of
‘variatlon - of the aforementioned index price » #accumulated in thirty-slx (36) months prior.to the ﬂscaltyear end that
is c‘q !dated:»‘is greater than 100%;.0r; with respect to the first;second and third year after its valld ty; “this procedure
will be applicable in case the accumulated variation of that index price, ca!wfated from the begmning of the 3 year
peﬁod and untit the end of each year, ‘exceeds 55%, 30% ‘and 15%”for the first, .second and third year of apphcaﬁ‘om
fespectuvely :2At the end of thi§ year. there has beeh an accumulauve variation wﬁk:h exceeds_the expec(ed{
condition. Consequentily, the taxainﬁataon adjustment has been appllad and the cost of goods acqu?red since the |
year 2018 has been updated as established in article 58 of the Argantme income Tax Law.

The enactment of Law 27,541 on Solidanty and Production Reactivahon which was pubhshed‘m December 2018,

5Eptmduwd some amendments to different taxes. The maln amendments related to Income Tax wereZi) in the first
“and second fiscal years begun after January 132019;sthe profit / loss for tax inflation ad]ustmenl shall be allocated
as follows: one sixth in the fiscal year of assessment thereof and the other five sixths ovér the foliowmg fiscal years;

and Ii) the rate applicable to compames for the thlrd fiscal year commencing after January 1, 2018418 increased
from 25% to 30%.

Due to the enactment of Law 27630 published‘in the Official Gazette on June 16,,2021 and effectii/e for the years
beginning on January 1, 2021, the current rates for corporate income tax were modified accordlng to the following
scale: .

- 25% for accumulated taxable net earnings of up to AR$ 5 million

- 30% for the second tranche, which will reach taxable profits of up to AR$ 50 milhon

- 35% for taxable profits over AR$ 50 mulﬁon

8"
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12 lntang:ble assem

<2
S

) ' Concession
Group . v o Asset
us$'c00

Cost
At 1 January 2020
Hyperinflation adjustments
Exchange adjustments
At 31 December 2020
Deconséiidation (1)
Hyperiiiflation adjustments
Exchange adjustments
At 31 December 2021
Accumulated amortization and impairment
At 1 January 2020
Amomzatnon charge

“ Hyperinﬂatgon adjustments
Exchange adjustments
At 31 Deoember 2020
Deoonsol'rdatien o )?
Hyperlnﬂauon adjﬁstments

At 31 Decembg 72021
Carrying amount

At 31 December 2021 : - -
At 31 December 2020 ;
- (1) Ses note 30 for more detalfs about:H

Concession assets
Concession assets represent the amount paad to acquire the conoession tights and are comprised of the electricity

distribution businesses;:

Under a 1998 concession agreement HSODEMSA was awarded. an exclusive rIght to distribute electricity in the
province of Mendoza: The conoess:on agreement is for 30 years divided into thres’ management periods of 10 years
each. On January 31, 2023,y with the pubtlcat;on of Decree 70/23 by the Government of the Province of Mendoza;
the concession peficd was extended for 20 additional years summafizing 50 years in total.

The concession assets relaled to the electricny dlsmbutuon busmess were fully Empanred in previous years based
on the value in use analysis carrﬂed out by the Group. The assets remain i impalred as of the reporting date.
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13 - Property, plant and equ!pment

Group

Cost
At 1 January 2020

Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Hyperinflation adjustments
Exchange adjusiments

At 31 Daecember 2020
Additions

Transfers

Deconsolidauon (2)
Hyperinflation adjustments
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2021

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At 1 January 2020
Depreciation charge
Disposals

Hyperinfiation adjustments
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2020
Depreciation charge
Deconsolidation (2)
Hyperinfiation adjustments
Exchange adjustments

Al 31 December 2021
Carrying amount

At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

Landand  Mechineryand  NOOTUSCH s rctommers  progesaand ot
transformers other assets

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
31,028 237495 277,415 36,551 59196 427,685
m 22 255 . 11.262 1nn12.
201 1,075 7.032 935 (9,243) -

- = - - (20) (20)

- 8,020 6,074 71,705 9.448 15,301 110.548
(8.837) | (8:681) (79.010) {10,410) (16.861)  (121,808)
30,585 23.975 277.397 36,524 59,635 428,116
- 176 ) - 14,071 14,247

16 3,434 1,367 ¢ (5:314) -

(173) . - (2,503) (2:763)
12,621 115,119 12,079 26,788 176,520

v {5838) .. . ) — I (6,769) (10,589) (78.837)
e 3T, 4537 43.201 82,088 537283
8.224 18913 161,785 21,529 15,683 226,134

980 530 6.176 1142 425 9.253

& . - . (20) (20)

4873 52107 6,807 4,054 69,961

(5.386) (56.374) (7.369) (4.484) (75.836)

18,930 163,694 22,109 15,678 229,392

. 584 . 7.454 1,226 488 10919

(67) - - (1,869) (1.940)

3726 7.828 70,244 4570 8,028 94,396
(1.684). (3.497) (30.642) (3.796) (2.560) (42,159)
T 12,19 23,788 210,750 24,109 19765 200608
25215 6.258 133,787 19.092 62.323 248875
21,604 5,046 113,703 A48, 43,957 ..-188.724;

{1 lndum right-of-use assels MUSSQS million (2020 US5 0.4 mﬁhtl}
{2) Sae note 30 far more details am HOS deconsolidation.

Barrowing costs of US$ 2.4 million (2020;, US$ 2;9) have been capitalised to date to Work'in progress and other

assets.

The Company had no propertyi.aplant and eqxiiapment at 31 December 2021 or 31 December 20203

P
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'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
“FOR THE YEAR ENDED.31. DECEMBER 2021 ..

13 Property, plant and equlpment : ’ (Continued)

Under the contracts for which the Group's efaclncnty dtstnbutlon assets were acquired and regulated, there are
restrictions on the use of said assets and also obligations to maintain relevant assets with the intention of protectmg
the services they provnde in addition, the Group cannot pledge relevant assets as collalera! for borrowlngs, except
for those borrowings inctirred to fifiance the acquisition of such assets.

Andma operates m a tough economic context, with a hypennﬂallonary environment as well as uncertalnty and
delays in tariff adjustmenls This has had an adverse® mpact on the Group's opefatmg results, triggering an
" impairment review under IAS 36 ‘impairment of asse\s o

The Board has carried out an’tmpairmenl review of long-term assets by comparing thetrxcarrylng amount to the
hrgher of fafr value lﬁgss costs of disposal; (" FVLCD? or value in use (*VIU"), For the purposes of assessing -
; lmpa;rmem’ asséts are grouped at thelr lowest leve! for which there are largely mdependem cash inflows (CGU).

The Group has one cash generatfng un;t (CGU) in Distribution (EDEMSA) at 31 December 2021 and had two cash
generanng untf iCGU) in Bistrlhution (EDEMSA) and generatxon (HASA) ‘at 31 December 2020.

The VIU fcr the CGU ¢ determined by calculating the net present value of the future cash flows expected to be
generated by each CGU. The esﬂmates of future cash flows were derived from approved extrapofated finandial
budgets using an estimated lndustry growth rate The cash ﬂows include the following key assumptions

1) Tariff increages: Management has calculated these'i mcreases based on the adjustment mechanssm agreed in
- the concess[on contract and the current agreed tariffs;
2y Discount rate: The discount rate used is a real‘interest rate and reflects specific ﬁsks related to the industry
™ and the country of operation;;
3k Growth rates: The cash; ﬂows include an estimated growth rate of 1%, which the Birectors believe reflacts the
expected annua:i ‘economic growth in the areas where the Gmup operates;
4) Tax rate Managemenl has used the tax rate of 35%“ that rs expected to be in effect in each of the periods
conS|dering the current tax law? and
5) Inﬂauon and exchange rates: They are based on estifated and current Argemlnean market mﬂalxon and
exchange rates.

The VIU calculations for the CGU in&Tﬁate that there"égé no ‘Ir*npafirment at the year end:.

Impact of possible changes in key assumptions ... .
The canrying value is more sensitive {0 movements: ih tariffs and dlscount rate:: Accordlngly. management has

undenaken a sensitivity analysis on thase two key assumpﬁons as outﬁned below:;

— -

R

Chang_e in assumptlon

Impalrment charge

g g ey £

Fariff Decrease of 153 US$ 5.41 mliligh

Discount rate pe Increase og«’j ; i US$ 1:02 niilkian
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e
14 Investments

Group Company -
2021 2020 ) 2021 2020
W Notes  US$'000 us$'oo0o Us$'000 . Us$'000
Non-.current )
Investment - Andes Etectncidad s, WA, 15 - % ® §476 . 34@80
Investment - Hidroelec}nca del'Sur S.A—, 15 1,974 B - -
18 - . 4 51 51 .
15 51,726 ' - 51,726 -
53,700 2 86,253 34,831
Current .
Listed ffivestments 61,681 50,940 : "
Unlisted investments 500 3,978 - &
62,181 54,918 - &
115,881 54,918 86,253 34,831
‘g
Movements in investments - Notes Group Company A
2021 2020 2021 2020
uss$'000 us$'000 US$'000 USs$'000
Non-current ) ’
At 1 January ‘ - - 34,831 Q3s20
Additions b 14;040 -
Disposals - - i
Share of profits in associates 36, - 37,301 ®
Deconsolidation . 30 211974 ‘ - . -
Exchange differences 1,151 - 81 1,002
At 31 December ’ 53,700 - 86,253 34,831
Current '
At 1 January . 54,918 42,336 - g Z
Additions : 45,005 31 023 B R
Disposals (7.179) i9;03%) 5= w
Changes in fair value of listed investments (19,568) 2;649 B2 b
Deconsolidation 30 (1003) . g ® %
Exchangs differences (9.992) ¥12:058) W &
At 31 December ' 62181 54,918 ® =
2 A16,881. 54,918 86,253 34,831

&

~
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14 Investments (Con ﬂnuéd)

Interests in associates

Set out balow are the associates of the group as at 31 December 2021 which, in the opinion of the directors, are
material to the group. The entities listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held
directly by the group. The country of incorporation or registration is alsc their principal place of business, and the
proportion of awnership interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

Place of % of ownership
Name of business/ interest Nature of Measurement | 31.12.21 | 31.12.20
entity country of relationship method US$'000 | US$'000

incorporation | 31,12,21 | 31.12.20

SAE LLP Argentina 23.40% 52% Associate Equity method 51,726 -

HDS Argentina 40% 80% _Asscciate Equity method 1,974 -
Total equity-accounted investments §3,700 -

. Summarised financlal information for associates

. SAE LLP ‘*vnaudited HDS
Summarised balance sheet 31.12.21 | 311220 | 31.12.2% 31.12.20
US$'000 | USS'000 | USS$'000 Us$'000
Total current assets : 52,130 - 4,141 3,487
"{ Total non-current assets - 170,199 - 8,186 9,566
{ Total assets ) 222,329 - © 12,328 13,053
Total current liabilities {23) - (3,067) (1,515)
Total non-current liabilities (1,253) - (897) (3,036)
Total liabilities ’ (1,276) - {3,964) {4,551)
Net assets : 221,053 - 8.364 8,502
Profit / (Loss) for the financial year 159,405 - (3,250) {223)

N
&
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o

14

e e oA s Mgat e

lnvestments . ' . (Con

i

Investments in subsidiarles and assoclates _
The directors consider the carrying value of investments'in subsidlacies and assodiates to be recoverable based on the
vatﬂéi’n use of the assets in EDENOR (supporting the'investmentiin SAE LLP)E"HASA and EDEMSA

The vatue in use for EDENOR and HASA s detennined by catculatnng the net present value of the future cash ﬂows ‘
expeated to be generated by each CGU_ The estimates of future cash flows were detived from approved extrapolated .

et

finandial budgets using an estimated’ industry growth rate: The cash flows include the’ fojtowing key assumpttonsu

£Y)

Listed investments =

1) Tariff increases: Management has calcuiated these lncreases based on the ad;ustment machamsm agreed: ’ln
the concession contract and the current agreed tanffs’

2) Discount rate: The discount rate used ls a realetnterest rate and reﬂects speaﬁc risks related to the mdustry and
the country of operation;

3) Growth rates: The cash ﬂows"{\f 'Tude an estu'nated growth rate of ; 1%, whtch the Btrectors baheve reflects the

expected annual economic growth in the areas whare the Group operates;

4) Tax rate: Management has used the tax rate of 35% that expected to be m emﬂsct"'r 7 each of the peﬁgds
considering the current taxigaw,sand o

5) Inflation and exchange rates: . They are based on estimated and current Argerifitean market{infilation and

exchange rates,;.

-
. W8
o

Listed ftnvestments compnse main 19 atfonal govemment bonds from Argentrna&*These financial assets are valued
based on thelf quoted piices at t the'fe, ortmg ‘date (Level 1)

Other Investments
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16 Subsidiaries and associates and related undertakings

&

Details of the Company's subsidiaries and associates at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

S.A.(EDENOR) (1) (3)

de Buenos Aires

Name Country of Registered address Principal Control | % Held | % Held
- incorporation activity 2021 2020
. L o 1-3 Charter Square, :
IAndina Electricidad Limited UK Sheffield, S1 4HS Holding Oirect 100 100
\ndes Electricidad S.A Maipu 1252, 2nd Floor,
" ncidad S.A. i Ciudad Autonoma de : ;
Argentina u Holdin Direct 100 100
(AESA) 9 Buenos Aires 9
jinversora Andina de .
Electricidad S.A. (IADESA) Argentina  [Belgrano 815 -Mendoza Holding Indirect 100 100
Mendinvent S.A. Argentina Belgrano 815 - Mendoza Holding Indirect 100 100]
SODEMSA Argentina  |Belgrano 815 - Mendoza Holding Indirect 100 100
Empresa Distribuidora de : Electricit
Electicidad de Mendoza Argentina  [Beigrano 815 - Mendo2a =8GO 1 indirect 51 51
S.A. (EDEMSA) (1) 8 9 digtribution
. . Duez Tedin N° 2728 -
Hidroeléctrica del Sur S.A. "
HDS) (2) Argentina  [Cludad Auténoma de Holding No 40 80,
- . Buenos Aires
Hidroeléctrica Ameghino . ISarmiento 698- Trelew- " Electricity
S.A. (HASA) Argentina o but generation No 239 47
South American Energy LLP| 1-3 Charter Square, .
(SAE) (3) UK Sheffield, S1 4HS Holding No 23.4 52
investment
@ and provision
- of services
related to the
Av. Maipu 1252, 12th distribution of
fgggﬁgg‘gﬁg;m SurSA. | Argentina  [Floor - Ciudad Auténoma |  electrical No 23.4 23.4
de Buenos Aires energy,
renewable
energies and
sustainable
technology
Empresa Distribuidora y 6363 Av. del Libertador Electricit
Comercializadora Norte Argentina  |Ave., Ciudad Auténoma di s(ribuﬁoyn No 11.9 g

The Company'’s subsidiary undertakings all have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares and capital accounts.

(1) EDEMSA's and EDENOR's financisl statements are availabla at www.cnv.gov.ar
EDEMSA's shares, rights and obligations under the concession contract may not be assigned, in whole or
part, to a third party without the prior consent of the province of Mendoza.
EDENOR's Class “A" shareholders may transfer their shares only with the prior approval of the ENRE.
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_was usedy

Subsidiaries and related undertakings : (Continued)

(2) Loss of control of Hidroelectrica del Sur S.A. (HDS)

&

On 25 February 2021 AESA ceded 50%$of the shares if owned in HDSThe transfer of HDS sheres was made
to South American Energy Development LLC (SAED) by virtue of a parhal debt cancellation agreement that
Andina PLC entered into with SAED,, Afler, thls transaction, the company has 40%.of the HDS capital and -
votes, losing control in HDS and therafore"indirect control il HASA: The deconsoiidation of HDS was -
accounted for as of 1 January 2021 due to the fact that the resuits of HDS between 1 January 2021 and 25
February 2021 were not stgmﬁcanl {the result for that peiiod-isiUS$ 0, 3 niillion (AR$ 32%\, 7 mlllton)gwéRefer to

Note 30 for the HDS balances lhal have been consoiidated as of 31 December 2020

(3) New investment
Andina has a 23.4% direct mlerest m South Amencan Energy LLP (SAE) end that’ lnlenasf was financed v:a
cap?‘lal contributions (see note 24} and loan agreements (see note 19).

Andiria has a 23.4% indiract interest in Energia del Cono Sur S. A; (EDELCOS) which is 100% controlled by .
SAE.

On 28 Dscember 2020, EDELCOS entered iinto a Stock Purchase Agresment (the SPA) with Argenune
company Pampa Energla S:A%; for the trensfer and asslgnmenl by the latter to EDELCOS of 512@ of the capital
stock and voling power of (EDENOR) Andina contributed $ 14,100,000 of the pnce of replacing ils share fo
23,;3‘%

18 Inventories

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020

Us$'a00 Uss$'000 Us$'000 Us$c00
Non-current, : : .
Raw materia‘s and consumables 3,514 2725 - i -
Curront . ] .
Raw materials and:gonsumables . 3,917 3,234 - -

During the year US$3:8:million of inventory, mostly spare parts, was transferred to property, plant and equipment

554.1 million was transferred to Cost of Sales (2020: US$2.6 million) when the inventory
5;.'31

(2020: US$2:3 millién

Inventory has been classified as current and non-current to reflect the future period of consumption.
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17 Trade and'other rece)vables

Group ' Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$'000 us$'000 ussoo0 Us$'000
Non-current

Amounts owed by other group entities : - FoIR 859 6,458
Amounts owed by associates 1473 - 1173 -
Corporation tax recoverable 3 7 - =
Other receivables 244 19 222 -
, ’ 1,420 26 = 2,354 5,458

Current
Trade receivables 21,388 19,707 - 445
Less provision for impairment (3,946) (3.373) - -
‘ 17,442 , 16,334 - 445
Amounts owed by group undenakmgs mr . . - 2,569 2,569
Less provision for impairment (1, = - (2.569) (2,569)
Accrued income (2 18,524 13,813 - -
_ Other receivables (3 4,935 9,763 19 10
Prepayments (4 8,535 8,878 123 .
49,436 48,788 142 455

(1) Credit with AEL net of provision for impairment

(2) Energy supplied pending blllmg

(3) Govermment credits relatf'ng to compensation funds; othertaxes and scclal security and other debtors
(4) Advances for works, servms and malenals

<

. Moverr;ents in the provisnon for :mpaument of trade reoewables and amounts owed by group undertaklngs are as
. follows:

*if'

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$'000 | US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
Movements in provision for impairment ’
At1 January 3,373 2,386 . 2,569 2,569
Provxsibn for reoelvab!es lmpalrment 75 1,800 - -
Recelvables wiitten off in the year 277) (850) - -
Hypennflauon adjustments 1,400 617 - -
Exchange di d' fferences {625) (680) - .
At 31 December . 3,946 3,373 2,569 2,569

Trade recefvablis are non-interest bearifig and generally have a 30 to 80-day term, Due to thair short matunttes' the
fair value of; trade receivables approximates to théir book value:
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18 Trade and other payables

' Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
uss$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 .
Non-current ’ .
Trade payables m% 145747 18;437 - -
Other taxation and social security 2,631 3451 2,438 2,460 -
Amounts owed to associates . 2;207 - 1169 1,737
Other payables : - 7396 2 . 12 2
18,981 21,890 - 3,620 4,189
Current '
Trade payables¢)’ 137,546 147,690 o213 7 W 195
Other taxation and social securityiz) 30434 - 14,142 ‘ - -
Govemnment payables related to compensat('on fundsg;.;ﬁ 6,438 - . - -
Other payables 4 6§39 610 235 ‘ . 238
Accrued expenses {35 64,529 32,775 . 581 628 -
: 239,486 195,217 1,029 1,081
{1} inchudes dedt with CAMMESAfMﬂmn{ USS 14.7 million (histaric dabt) and curramt USS 121 3 miltion (historc debt USS 3 1 milllon and curmrent dedt
USS118.2 milion), :
@  tncome wﬁw«faﬁeway ang other taxation. :
() Net debts toF o feas. subsidies;, and Cantrtuan for the Compensation of Elecuic costs (CCCE) 8t 1661901 e year s net amount is usualy 8

(4) &

Trade payables (except amounts due to CAMMESA) are non-mterest bearing and generally have a 30 to 80-day
term;;Due to their short maturities, the fair value of trade payabtes approximates to théir book value:; i

Settlament of CAMMESA's debt prior to January 2016

At 31 December 2021 EDEMSA owed CAMMESA US$19:5 million (AR$2 btﬁlon) for hstonc energy purchases .

ificurred prior to 2016,

During 2018;; EDEMSA and CAMMESA agreed a payment pian for CAMMESA's historic debt ificurred pnor to
January 2016 (US$19;5 mullon (AR$2 600 million)), which included a reduction’in late charges, a grace period from -

1 February 2016 to Aptil 2018, a‘financing term of 90 months from April 2018 uniil September 2025 and a fixed
annual interest rate of 10%

On 31 December 2021 EDEMSA owed CAMMESA US$17.8 mﬂ!ion (AR$1.8 b:lhon) under this payment plan;

The payment plan establishes. that the failure to pay of the plan fﬁstalmsents and/or the fnvéices whose due date is
during the term of the plan, will cause the ‘immediate and automatic expiration of the financing plan. The agreement
i8 belng fulfiled and there were no unpaEd instalments or mvolces duse during the term at the reponlng date,

Article 15 and the implications for CAMMESA's debt

Notwuthstandmg the payment plan for CAMMESA's historic debt; noted above; on 21 December 2016, Law 27:341
was published (FY2017 National Government Budget). Amcle 15 of this law established the compensation terms for
the historic debt that Argentine electricity distributors have. with CAMMESAin refation to the purchase of energy
between 2013 and 2016 (a fithe during which electricity tanfs were frozen).

Under this taw,; CAMMESA was given the authority to offset the differences in the income received by the distnbutors
against the income that would have been recognised under the concession _agreement (known as the Unearned
Income). In this case; sihce EDEMSA's Uneamed Income exceeded the liabiiity owed to CAMMESA for the 2013-
2016 period; the appiucation of the law would have resulted’in a complete offset and settiement of the outstanding
hab'llty

7,

1]
e

£
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‘18 Trade and other payablss : . o (Continued) h

Despite already agieeing to a payment plan with CAMMESA in respect of the 2013-2016 debt (see Settlernent, of
CAMMESA's debt prior to January 2016),;EDEMSA had not refinquished its right to claim the credit outlined in Amcle
15;Subsequently, the company filed a series of claims with the National Secretary of Energy (SEN), the Provmce of
Mendoza and the EPRE to enforce the application of Article 15, However through the Settlement Agreement signed
on 29 December 2022 with the SEN, EDEMSA has now, renounced any rlght.t action or admrmstratnve xto any }udlcral,}l
extrajudlcral or arbjtration claim in the Argentine Repub!rc and/or abroad against the Nat:onal ‘State and/or CAMMESA™
and/or the Prownoe of Mendoza. Additionally, through the Settlement Agreement signed on 3 January 2023 with the
Government of the Province of Mendoza (see Setllement Agreement with the Government of the Province of Mendoz8);,
EDEMSA has now relmquished any and all adminjstrative and/or ;udrcral claims, whether ;nruated or not for Unearned
Income accrued during the 2008-2022 petiod, up to the date of signifig the agreement. This agreement does not have
an |mpact on the 2021 financial results. As a result EDEMSA continues to fulfilliits commitments under the payment
plan; as noted above.

Settlement of CAMMESA's current debt

As of 31 December 2021, EDEMSA owed CAMMESA US$118:2, mrihon (AR$12;1 billion) for energy purchases
dIngurred after 2018, of whlch US$110.4 mrllton (AR$11.3 blllron) is due lmmedlately EDEMSA is currently 7in the

process of negotlatmg a payment plan with CAMMESA to ensure it is reflective of the tough economtc landscape in
which EDEMSA operates.

‘On 14 December 2020, Law 27.591 was published (FY2021 National Government Budget). Article 87 of this law

instructs the SEN to agree a seltlement plan to resolve the debts and credits that electricity distributor agents of the
MEM hold wjth CAMMESA and/or the MEM as of 30 September 2020, the "Speclal System for the Reguiarizatlon of
Payment Obligations On 22 February 2022,,by means of DNU (Executive Orderiissued on the grounds of Necessity
and Urgency) No. 88, the Executive Power extended the negotiation until 31 December 2022,

On 29 December 2022, a Deed Agreement was signed by and between EDEMSA;:EPRE, the SEN and the

" Government of the Province of Mendoza for the resolution of MEM's oblrgations, The main issues that were agreed

were::

1) Recognition of the debt i favor of CAMMESA,
. 2) Racognition of the creditin favor,of EDEMSA with the SEN,

3) Determination of the payment ptan N

4) Renouncing of EDEMSA to any nght action or edmlmstratrve judEcral extrajudicial or arbm'atuon claim’in the
Argentine Republic andfor abroad against the National State and/or CAMMESA andlor the Province of
Mendoza, in relation to the rate freeze for the year 2020 provided forin Decree No: 314£20 and its extensions
and/orin Laws No; 27 344, 27~431 and 27;541.

5) Closure of lawsiiits frled aga;nst the Nalional State and/or CAMMESA related to the debt with the Wholesale
Electricity Market:X

Among the obligations of the DTslributor EDEMSA agreed to sign a Debt Regularization Agreement with CAMMESA
(for the current debt in force as of 30/Apnl 2021) before 31 May 2023 (extended according to SEN's note NO-2023-
48607674).

i '"-fstatements. EDEMSA ; Srss within the period stipulated for the srgmng of the Debt
Regularization Agreement,, Therefore.tthe Company's Management beligves the rmpact thereof will be recorded at the
moment of exacution of thé Debt Regilarization Agreement that the Distributor carries out with it§ debtor (CAMMESA)

Although to date the parjes have not yet fihialised the Debt Regularization Agreement, EDEMSA is negoliating with
the intention of signing |t;xln the meantlmep EDEMSA has made full payments to CAMMESA for all i invoices related to
the purchase of energy sifice March 2021.The sngnmg of the Debt Regulatization Agreementwrth CAMMESA is crudial
for EDEMSA as it would enable the Company to agree a payment plan with its main supplier, This would contribute to
stabilizing its economic and: ﬁnanmal“sntuatton ultimatelydmproving the financial position of the entire Group
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19 Bonowlngs
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
US$'000 Us$'000 uss$'coo Us$'000
‘Non-current: : ., #
Otheg borrowings 12,867 2:880 9,856 -
12,867 2:880 9,856 -
Current:
Bank bgrmwings Wag 22 ) -
Other borrowmgs 76 2,893 - - 2813
76 2,915 - 2,813
12,943 5,795 e 9,856, 2,813
Movementdn borrowings s analysad as follows;,
Group Company )
2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$'000 US$'000 uUsSs$'600 uss'ooo
At 1, Jafuary 5795 16,735 - 2,813 8,780
Proceeds from borrowings 10, 053 228 9,953 B
Acgrued interest 2’083 3,193 1,727 1,194 .
Fair value valuation 188 - 188 -
Income for refinancing agreement ki (1.822) - - {1,822)
Debt capitalization (1) - “ (10,706) - (5,249)
Repayments of borrowings (2. 053) (49) (2,012) (24)
Balance compensation (2) (2,813) - (2,81 3) -
Deconsctlidation (3) : .(80) - -
Exchange difference . (230) o {1.784) § e sz, __(68)
At 31 December 12 943 5,795 8 856 2,813

(1) In November 2020, an agreement was siféned for certain debts of Andina and Andes Eledr;sgéad SA to
convert the outstanding debt |nc|uding Interest into equity shares of the Company equlvalent to US$ 10.7
million. The table below outlines the specific debts that were capitalised:

s

Us$000

COMPANY . :
South America Energy Developmenl LLC (SAED) 4,263
Stanhope Worldwide Services inc 986

Subtotat
Andes Electricidad S.A. (AESA)

5,249

Criss Cross Inti‘Dev:i Inc 3,072
Generation Capital Investment 2,385
Subtotal 5457
TOTAL 10,706

(2) On 25 February 2021 AESA ceded 50& of the shares if owned in HDS. The transfer of HDS shares was made
to South American Energy Development LLC (SAED) by virtue of the debt canceliation agreement that Andina
entered into with SAED as mentioned above."As consideration for this transaction, a USD 2.8 million debt was
cancelled in favor of AESA with Andina (which was offset against the debt of 5.4 million that AESA had with
Andina). At 31 December 2021 ,aﬂer the offsets and cancella(ions mentioned above, Andina has a credit with
AESA of 0.95 miflion disclosed in Note 17 "Amounts owed by group undertakings” in the Company Financial
Statements.

{3) See note 30 for more details about HDS deconsolidation,,
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19 Borrowings ' 4(Continued) ,_

The Gronp;s and Coripany’s other borrdwings comprise of:
Group

« US$1.7 mtlllon loan from Neil Bfeasdale,, a Dnrector of the Company and a shareholder. The loan is unsecurad
and bears annual interest of 8%3 The joan and-accrued interest are repayable on 31 December 2023. At 31
December 2021 the accrued intérest amounted to US$0.5million.

* AR$22:3 munuon‘;gusso 2 miluon) from Trench Energy Consulting SRL,.The loan is unsecured and bears
annualf ‘intergst al' BADLAR + 5% The loan and accrued interest are repayable on 31 December 2024. At 31

December 2021 the accrued interest amounted to AR$27.3 million (US$0,2 million).

Trench Energy Consult;ng S.R.L: ('Trench“) prowdes consulting services ralated to strateguc information to
EDEMSA. Trench develops commercial actwufes and receives, among others, advisory services from Andes
Efectrididad S: A., anumdirect controlling Company of EDEMSA, as part of a development and expansion

plan;

* ARS$6,5 miﬂton,\(US$0*06m|IIéon) from DALAI SA. The loan is unsecured and bears annual interest of 8%.

The !oan has bsen presented in current other borrowings due 16 the maturity date of 31 Decernber 2022. At
31 December 2021 the accruedinterest amounted to AR$1.3 million (US$0.04million).

,,_z

¢ ARS$21 m‘IIto #fUS$0.2 million) from Magnus Argentina SA (provides financial services). The loan is
unsecured and bears annual interest at BADLAR + 4% The loan and accrued interest are repayable on 31
December 2024. At 31 December 2021 the accrued mterest amounted to AR$10 million (US$0.1 mnlhon),

Company

« US$6 miilion loan from Crosgo Tradmg Ltd (provides fi nanaal services). The canvertible loan is unsecured
and bears 8% annuawnterest .The loan and accrued: ‘interest are repayable on 30 June 2025, At 31
December 2021 the aécrued interest amounted to U$S1.6 million and 0.2 million as fair value valuation.

+ US$0.35 mlth’bnatfoan from Jenkifis & Keane LLC (provides financial services). The convertible loan is
_unsecured and bears 8%‘annuahmterest~ The loan and accrued interest are repayable on 1 July 2024. At 31
December 2021 the accrued:interest amounted to U$S0.05 million

*« US%1. 6 mﬂllon loan from Jose Luis Manzano (shareholder of Andina). The loan is unsecured and bears 6%
annual lnterest. sThe loan and accrued»mterest are repayable on 31 December 2024, At 31 December 2021
the accrued'interest amounted to USS0;1 mxﬂ:on

sl
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20 Leases
Group Company
Motes 2021 2020 . 2021 2020
US$'000 uss$'oso US$'000 . US$'000
Right of use assets (1) ' S : '
At 1 January 1,170 . 1,224 - ’ -
Additions in the year - - - A
Amoitisation - (48) - -
Deconsolidation of HDS 30 (1,170) - - -
Hyperinflation adjustments e - 331 - -
Exchange adjustments - (337) - -
At 31 December - 1,170 - -
Lease lability (2) . "
At 1 January 983 1418 vk
New léases obtained e 919 - iz
Deconsolidation of HDS 30 (904) - say
Repayments of leases (319) . (435) ooy
Accruediinterest 153 - &7
Hyperinfiation adjustments (71) - 1%
Exchange adjustments {15) - -
At 31 December 748 983 -
Of which are: .
Non-current 578 688 - W By
Current 168 205 - Ee?
746 983 - ‘:,g

(1) Includes buildings (2020 US$ 262;5 mllllon) and transformers (2020 US$807.$ mi)libn)*.Thvs section does not Include right-of-use
assets of EDEMSA for US$ 0.3 mifiion (2020 USS 04 mxmon) which are dnsclosed din Prcpeﬂy plant and equfpmenl
(2) Represents the tease liabilities of EDEMSA,

it

e

o )
21 Provisions
Group . - Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
us$'000 uUs$'0co US$'000 US$'000 R

Fines » 7:500 8,431 T gme i
Legal claims 712 634 o
, 8,212 9,065 -
Non:currant 138 266 e
Current 8,073 8,799 -

L 8212 9:065 EoN

®

R
R

Pad
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21 Provisions " (Continued)

Movementsin provisionszy,’
. . Legal
Group . Fines claims Total

US$'000  US$000  US$'000

At 1 January 2021 8,431 634 . 9,065
Addftlonal .provisions if the year 2,609 477 3,086
Used/paid during ‘the year (5; 476) (544) {6.020)
Exchange dlfference (% 563) (118) (1,681)
Hypeﬂnﬂauon adjustment 3899 oo - 263, . 3762
At 31 December 2021 ' 7, 500 ... A 2;;(« 8,212

' L Legal
Group Fines claims Total

- Uss$'oo0 us$'000 uss$'coo

At 1 January 2020 6118 601 6,720
Addmonal proyisions it the year . 4,751 439 5,190
Usedlpald durmg the year - (2277) (390): (2,667)
Exchange drfference (1~743) (171); (1,914)
Hyperrnﬂatwn adjustment 1,581 155" 1,736
At 31 December 2020 8,431 634 8,085

ik

Fines

EDEMSA’s actwrtres are regulated by the provrndal regulator; Ente Provindial Regulador Eleclrico (EPRE) EPRE
regulates the. approval and control of tariffs and controls the quality levels of the technical product and sarvuce;
the . commerdial services :and the compluance with publfc safety regulanons,, as provided in the Concession
AgreementsFailure to comply w‘ith the oblrgatrons may result} in penames being imposed:As of the reportmg date;
EDEMSA has US$7,5 m1[I|on (2020: US$8,4 miliion) for EPRE% penalties.

Legal claims

Th;s represents provisigns for certain claiins, relating to penalfies i connectron with complain S¢. Iawsurts and
other legal] prooedures‘imcludrng customaf claﬁms, in which a third party:is: seek‘mg payment for f dlfeged damages
reimbursement for ‘losses or compensation corinécted to the ordinary course of busrness;ywhlch are expected to
crystallize under vaned terms after the reporting date,,

{n management’s oprnion after recewmg appropriate legahadvrce. the outcome of these clarms fis unlrkely to
resuitiin a sxgniﬁcant }oss in excess of the amounts provrded

%
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22 Deferred taxatlon I i

The followgng are the major deferred tax

v 3
fiiies and assets recognised by the Group and Company,, and

movegtents therean:
Liabilittes  Liabilities

Group 2021 2020

T US$'000 USs$'000
Provision for bad debt #1:061) (709) o
Notional income tax (1,364
Provision for accruediinterest payable (6,426)
Employee benefits (1 (1,137)
Carry forward Iosses (11 946) (11,083)
Other 9 732 13,056
Non-current assets 1001 41’06§ .
Borrowings (261) s 208

54,453

33,383

-
B

The Company has no deferred tax assets or liabilities;®

% I

fch
w5

3
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22 Deferred taxation

" (Continued)

Movements in deferred tax liabilities i

Provision Notional  Pr Employ Carry Other Non- " Total

for bad income forward Borrowings current .

debt tax charges Benefits _losses assets

Uss'000 Us$'000 Uss$'a00 Us$'000 Uss$'000 US$'000 uS$°000 US$'000.  USS$'000
At 1 January 2020 436 1,831 (68) 1,153 9,156 (8,178) 60 {39,545) (35,055)
Credit/(charge) to the profit or loss 284 (416) 6,493 kL 2,168 (5.181) {39) (1,985) . 1,375
Charge to employee benefits - - - (36) - - . - (36)
Minimal notional tax paid - (194) - - - - - - (194)
Hyperinflation effect 158 688 (25) 417 3,309 (2,832) 22 (14,297) (12,560)
Exchange differences (169) (645) 26 (448) (3.550) 3135 (23) 14,761 13,Q87
At 31 December 2020 708 1.364 6,426 1,137 11,083 (13.056) 20 {41,066) (33.383)

o . i . )

Credit/(charge) to the profit or loss 180 {1.693) 3,238 156 (1,131) 6,079 237 (23.306) (16,230)
Credit to employee benefits - i} R R 311 N R N .. 311
others results integral .
Hyperinflation effect 294 573 2,667 472 3.606 (4,515) 8 (16,110) (13,0C5)
Deconsolidation (1) - - - - - (267) - 2,313 2,046
Exchange differences (132) (238) (1.190) {211) (1,612) 2,027 4) 7.168 5808
At 31 December 2021 1,064 6 11,141 1,865 11,946 {8,732) 261 {71,001) {54,453)

(1) See note 30 for more details about HOS deconsolidation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER»‘2021 :

" 22 Deferred taxation ’ o T (Continued)

In addition to.the net deferred income tax‘iiability of US$54 miliicn (2020: US$33 milhon) the Group has recoghised
a non-offsemng deferred income tax asset of US$niki(2020; US$ nil).

Minimum notional’énoome tax was payable in Argentina and is supplementary to income tax;, The Group determlned
the amount of Minimum notvonal inooma tax due at the applicable tax rate (1 %) and its tax Ilabilrty was the h'gher
of the minimum notional tax and the'ihcome tax due. However«‘lf the minimum notional income tax fora gwen year

exceeded the amount of income tax;;such excess may be camed forward against future income ta)? liabnlmes fora -

maximum of ten years, In 2019 the application of the mihimum notional income tax was repealed for the years
beginning on or after 1 January 2019:

The Group was Inable to pay a rilnimum notional income tax at the applicable tax rate of 1%“ calculated on the
value of fixed and current assets at the reporting date. The minimum notuonalgmcome tax was'in addhion to
corporatlon tax and the Gnoup’s tax Ilabli:ty for each ﬁnancual year was the hvéhsr of the mlﬁimum noy”onal income
fax and the oorporatron tax for lhe year,income tax can be offset against this tax, In addition, any payment of, this
tax, not offset by i income tax, would be tgealed as a payment on account of lnoome tax computab%e for a maximum
period of ten years. The Group recognised-the tax on nollonal presumed‘income earned in previous years as a
credit, consndenng that it would offset future taxable income.

In 2019, the applncat&m of the m;mrnum notionat income tax was repealed for years begmn[ng on or after 1 January
2019. The mifimum’ notnonal’income tax is included as a deferred tax asset to the extent that it'is probable that
taxable profits wnll be availablé aga!nst which minimuom notional‘income tax can be utlhsedi Howeverzthe credit of
USD $0.06 mtll:on at the year end (note 11), is estimated to be used as a partial payment of corporation tax {i the
next fiscal year

In the Group;:lGs

s"es"‘fitj; respect of which deferred tax assets have baen recogriised will.expire between 2022 and
2025. S e ¥

23 Employee benefits schemes

Long term benefits for years of service ., w

This representsithe accrued benafits to be paid to employees covered by the collec 've bargammg agreement for
the mdus!ry labor un‘ion that have completed twenty, twenty-five, thirty, and thnrty;ﬁve years of service. This is
paid:in the; of-;a specual remuneration equivalent to the monthky salary in the month, that the year.of service

Drm
conditions are met; This amount doubles when the employee reaches forty years of service:s

Long term benefits for retirement or disabllity

The Group operates a defined benefit plan. This represents accrued benefits to be pald to emptoyees coyvered by
the collectwe bargammg agresment for the industry labor umon, for staff reachrng retirement age or retmng asa
result. ‘of disability prior to th:s All such employees who have at least five years of servlce with the Group are
entnted o this benefit:, Employees are paid a bonus equivalent to ten months of thelr last monthly salary. :This
Jsiincreased by two percent for each year of service exceedmg the f rst five yearss:

These benefits are valued aooording to the actuat‘fal method of the pro}ected unit c:edlfw‘l'he Group estnmales the
future outcome of certain variables that affect the value of the T‘aﬁ'iflty Tncluding the rate o ‘ﬁnﬁahon salary
incfeases and changes in mortdlity rates. The amounts calcu!ated are djscounted usig a di’é‘count rate that
reﬂects the ume value of money ‘and the spedific risks to the cash flows corisidered:: The dufferences between the
pnor ‘year estimates and the actual charge and changes in estimates are classified as gagns and losses within
admm;strauve expenses. &

-

¥

»;
,{y i
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23.

Emptoyee benefits schemes

ibontinuedj .

The mairi assumptlons used in the calculation are the dtscount rate and the expected salary increase..The actual

.rate used to discount the obligations of these benefits was delermmed by reference to the market yleld (at the

report{ng date) of the National Government's bonds. The salary inicrease rate responds to ihe historical evolution

ofit.
Key assumptions

Discount rate e o
Expected rate of§alary increases

Amounts recoghlzed in the income statement
- Current servloe cost

Net Entefest on net definied beriefit habmry
,Totaj costs

Amounts taken to other comprehensive income

Aclua‘fial changes related to obligations

2021 2020
% %
155
8 s 5
2021 2020
Us$'00
) Uss$’000
710 586
574 513

1,284 _ 1,099

2021 2020
Uss$'00
0 Uss$'o00

845 344

The amounts; :ﬁcluded in the statement of financial position afising from obligations in respect of defined benefit

plans are as !olfows

Group

Present value of dgﬁned benefi it obhgauons
Deficit'Th scheme

‘Movementsiin the present value of de{gned benelit oﬂli’gar{_t;);ns

Liabifitiés at 1 January
Current semce cost
Benefits paid

Actuarial gains and losses
Interest cost

Other

At 31 December

2021 2020
US$'000 US$'600
5,330 4,550
5,330 4,550
Group Group
2021 2020
Us$'000 ussg'eoo
4,550 4,612
., 710 586
(2,547 (1,383)
ST 997 344
574 513
1,046 (122)
5,330 4.550
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23

24

(1)

{2) - Capital increase for the purchase of EOENOR (see note i5° to more details about the newginvestment)

Ny e

Ei ployee beneﬂts schemes

The Company had no postiem ployrnent benefits at 31 December 2021 or 31 December 2020

s )

(Contmued).

There are no 6!an assets and therefore the ls‘ability presented S the gross defined beneﬁtﬁlfébi[ny,;

The sensitivity of the defined benefit Irablmy outstandmg at 31 December 2021 to changes m the main

actuarial assumptbons is as foﬁows‘

s v
. lncrease Adecrease of 1§

increase of US$310000'in the liabillty respectively,,

AEES

. !ncreasew[,,decrease of 11% in rate the of satary_jncreases w]ll‘ ¢ result? igx an increase of

US$320 000 !a decrease of US$278,000 in the(t b

i3

Share capital and reserves

Ordinary share capital

issued and fully paid

96,156,112 (2020: 96,156,112) ordihary shares of 10p each (1) m
44,853,670 (2020: 44,853 670) ordfnary shares having a nominal value of
10p per share (1)

26,035,032 (2020: nil) ordinary shares havmg a nommal value of 10p per
sharea

Totai’share capital

44,853,670 (2020: 44.853.6?f§i"ishare prerrﬁ'um of 8p per share
26,035,032 (2020: nil) share premium of 8p per share
Total share premium

Preference share capital

Issued and fully paid B

50,000 (2020: 50,000) redeemab!e preference shares of £1 each
Preference shares classified as; liabll'tres

Capital increase through a debt capitalization (see note 19)%

Reserves

Merger reserve b

The merger reserve arose follo@:iyijlg the compleg‘t}m of the demerger of Andes PLC on 11 Ju;[y 201 29‘,

Transiation reserve
The translation reserve results from exchange dlfferences aﬁsing from the ggnslatlon of the. assets and liabjlities of the
Group's operations into the prasentauon currency at exchange rates prevailing at the reporﬂng date%and’mcome and
expense items at the average exchange rates for the repofting year,, L.

Retained eamlngs/(accumulated losses)
The. retained eammgsl(aocumu!ated‘{osses) include al! other net galns and losses and transactions wnh owners (&ga
dwrdends) not recognised elsewherew

if real discount rate Wik resuj; in a decrease of US$263,000/ an

Group and Company

2021 2020
USS'OO% uss$'000
- 14,904 14,904

5.948 5,948

3e21 -, =

24,473 20,852

4758 4,758

2,897 -

7,655 4,758

78 78
78 78
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25 Flnanclal instruments

The Group is exposed through its operations to the foliowing ﬁnanmal risks: market rssk forelgn currency Tisk, interest
rate risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and capital risk. Management seeks to rmmm;ze the Group’s exposure to
those risks by reviewing and agreemg policies for managing each financial risk and monitoring them on a regular basis;
No formal policies have been put in place in order to hedge the Group's activities to the exposure to interest rate nsk

price risk or foraign currency risk, however they may be considered in the future. No derivatives or hedges agalnst
these risks were used during the year.

There have been no substantive changses in the Group's exposure to financial ;?éks;:;;poli'cies, management or
measurement of them unless otherwise slated in this note.

Principal financial instruments
The Group's principal financial instruments, from which financial instrument risks anses. comprise cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings.

The table below shows the carrying values of the Group's financial assets and financial liabggﬁes.

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020

Uss$000 Us$'000 UsS$'000 US$'000
Carrying amount of financial assets
Trade and other receivables e 40,683 35,768 "142 ) 455
Cash and cash equivalents b 5,820 10,229 1 18
Listed investment 62,181 54,918 - -
Carrying amount of financial :
liabllities -
Measured at amortised cost 175,550 206,290 11,473 5611

g Laquidaty risk
Liquidity riskiis the risk that an entity will encounter dnfﬁculty in meeting obhgatlons associated with financial liabilities
that are seuled by delwering cash or another financial asset.

Liquidity nsk‘ is monitored by the Group to ensure that it has sufficient resources to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. The nquldlty risk of the Group is managed by the Board who monitor the Group's liquidity requirements through
monthly management accounts and penodlc cash flow forecasts.. New funds are borrowed when required. The Group
intends to maintain a balance of fundmg desngned to reduce Ilqu[dlty risks whilst also seeking to minimise the costs of
borrowmgs. Where appropriate the Board wdl seek additionat funds from the issue of share capital, private or public
placements:

The table below shows the,Group and Company's fi nandal liabilities at the reportifig date by their remaining contractual
malunty The amounts disclosed'in the malurity table are thé contractual undiscounted cash flows which may differ from
the amounts’included in the statement of fi nanC(aI posmon because the balances presented in the statement of financial

,,,,,
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25

Flnanclal Instruments

Group
2021

Current financial liabilitles:
Trade and other payables -
Loans and borrowings
Leases

Non-current financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables
t.oans and borrowings
Leases

Company
2021

Current financial liabilitles:
Trade and other payables

Non-current financial liabllities:

Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings

Group
2020

Current financial liabilitles:
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings
Leases

.Non-current financial Habilities:

Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings
Leases

By

(Conmmed)
Carrying  Contractual 1 year 1t06 Over 6
Amount cash flows or less Years Years
uUs$'000 us$'o00 us$'000 Us$'ea0 uUs$'000
144,523 144,523 144,523 & e
T 76 “76 78 LS 5y
168 168 168 2 P
17,338 24,786 3,448 71:338 i
12:867 4*590 A 14,590 T
578 578 578 - ey
- 175‘550é 184;321 14§379§ 35,928
Carrying Contractual 1 year 1to 5 Over §
Amount cash flows or less Years Years
UsS$'000 UsS$'e00 . US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
. (v'z’é
448 448 448 - R
1,189 1,169 - 1,169 Z
9,856 10,495 ~ 10,495 )
11,473 12,112 448 11,664 -
Carrying  Contractual 1year 1to 5 COver &
Amount cash flows " orless °* years Years
Uss$’000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$°'000 uss$'o00
181,075 181,075 181,075 - -
2915 102 102 2
295 297 297 4 ESS
18,437 34,650 4,195 30,455 -
2,880 3,697 - 3,697 -
688 9689 - 180 779 -
206,290 220,790 185,859 34,931 24
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25

Financial instruments

Company
2020 -

Current financial llabilities:
Trade and other payabies
Loans and borrowings

Non-current financial Jiabilities: _

-Trade and other payab!es
Loans and borrowzngs

Credit risk

(Continued)
Carrying  Contractual 1 year 1t06 ' Over §
amount cash flows or less years Years
Us$000 Us$'000 us$'000 Uss'ooo uss$'oco
1.061 1,}06 1 1306 1 - -
2,813 . - - A
1,737 1,737 1737 "
5611 2,798 1,061 1,737 -

In accordance with the local leg'slatlonf the Group is not ab!e to subjéctiits customer podfo!zo to a regular credit
. fisk assessment and i therefora exposed to credlt risk due to the poss1bn§ity that customers may,fail to meet their

obhgatlons

,,,,,

-ﬂnancual obligations. The Group has the:nght to disconnect services if customers fail to meet their firancial

The Group is also subject to counlerparty credit fisk attnhutab!e to its deposits of cash and cash equ‘
fisk is limited because the counterpafties are banks with high credit satings assngned by mtemationat credl -raung

‘agencies.

Svitas

The carrying amount of ﬁnanaa! assets represents the maximum credlt exposure; The maximum exposure {o

credit'risk at the reporting date wass:

Group

‘Current financlal | assets:
Trade and other rece'ivables
Investments . )
Cash and cash equivalents

Company 3

Current financial assets:
Trade and other recewables
Cash and cash equivalents

12021 2020
Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum
value exposure value oxposure
UsS$°000 Uss$000 Us$'o00 Us$'000
40,683 40,683 35,768 35,768
62,181 62,181 54',918 54 918
5,820 5,820 10,229 101229
eeTU08684 Y 108,684 UUUUM00:915 T 100915
2021 2020
Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum
value exposure Value Exposure
US$'000 uss$'000 Us$'000 us$'000
142 142 455 7 455
1 1 18 18
143 143 473 473
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e

Financial instruments : - (Continued)

iMarket risk

The Group takes on exposure to market nsks@ Market nsks arise from apen posmons in (a) forelgn currenciés and (b)
interest bearing llabaht:es and commodityirlsks al)of which are exposed to general and specific market movements,
Management does not limit the value of risks that | may be accepted. However, qmanagemem’{;s on alert for s:gn‘iﬁcant
market movements and takes these movements into account in thelr future dé\almgs}

" Interest rate ﬁsk

Interest rate rtsk is the risk that the falr value of future cash flows of a fi nanclal instrument wzuvﬂuctuate because of

‘comes from variable interest rates on borrow ngs

The Group does not have formal poli’des and procedures for the management of interest rate risks as management
considers this risk insignificant to the Group's business\g .

Price risk

The Group is not subject to prlce fisk due to tariffs not beiﬁg open market based but regulated: However;; i future tariff
reviews are not forthcoming, this wiIl adversely affect cash flows and the abllity of the Group to lnvest"ln the business
and could impair Group asset values :The Group has not used any denvaﬁve hedges agamst this risk In connection
with e|ectnc|ty sales, the Group i is not exposed to risks due to f(uctuations &n the prlces pald to purchase electncity on
the market, since price ﬂuctuatxons are passed through to customers.

The Group is exposed to commodlty pdbe fisk in relation to the purchase of the copper wires used in the distribution
networks. The Group does not use derivatives to hedge this risk. The Group is also exposed to price risk due to
mﬂauonary increases in the pfice ofthe goods and services it purchases. To manage its exposure’ to this risk, the Group
has established commercial practeces aimed at selecting the most convenient suppliers which ensure minimizing the
costs of purchasing inputs without's tmpacung théir quality.

Foreign currency risk N
Currency risk is the risk that the fair
in foreign exchange rates.

.Vgue or future cash fiows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
e

The Group is mainly exposed to. currency risks on certain bank deposnts debtors and credltors denominated in'a
different currency from their functional currency: .

The Group's exposure to foréign currancy fisk mainly relates to balances in USS, based on cafrying amounts atthe’

reporting date as follows:

45

2021 2020

usso00 .- Us$'000

Trade and other receivables . : : ' 1,728 874
Investments 42,552 50,137 -

Cash ardl cash equivalents 20 769

Financia! liabilities . {12,543) (6,192)

% ) 31,758 45,588

e

ot
)

G

3
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ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

. 25 Financtal instrumenls _ . : _ ' (Continued)

Effect on profit of changes in ek_change rates

2021 2020

Us$'000 us$'000

Functional currency strengthening by 23% ¢y . ' : 5,886 8,449
Functional currency weakening by 23% 1 s ééffs,aaﬁ')}? (8,449)

{1} According to he devaluation of the Argentine peso during 2021

Capital risk
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concemn, to
maintain sufficient ﬂnanc:al ﬂexubumy in order to undertake |nvestmem plans.'and to optimise the weighted average cost

of capital and tax effi‘clencyn &
- K To mamtaln or adjust the optimum capital structure;: the Group may‘\ook for new debt facﬁiues. nssue new share capxta|
7‘3 5o for ‘cash; repay or restructure existing debt, amend ;ts dwldend policy, or undertake other restructuring activities
& & conslderad appropriate.

Nel lther the Company nor any of ifs subsidiariés are subjéct to externéij imposed capliat reqfif_irements&

2 3: L The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt ratio as fé’ilows?%
i Group
‘ 2021 2020
A ‘ . . US$'000 US$'000
o onk Borrowings excluding leases 12,943 5,795
: Less: cash and cash equwalents (5,820} (10,229)
Net debt / (credit) - ' 7123 (4.434)
Total equity 85,512 56,504
Equity and net debt / credit 92,635 52,050
"Net debt / (credit) ratio _ 8% (9%)

The Group have an optifmum capital structure of 8% (2020: (9%}

Sz
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NOTES TO'THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
EOR.THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021, . iy s
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26 Capital commitments

Contracts for mamtenanoe of the llnes and to mvestment plan with amounts contracted for but not prov!dad’l‘n the
financial sla(ementSr

Group Company z
2021 2020 2021 2020
. US$'000  US$'000  'US$'000  US$000
 Acquisition of property, plant and equipMeRt 9,214 8,744 - I

All‘ amounts are caleg&?fsed as lass than one year:

27 Related party transactions

Remuneration of key management personne/
Key @anagem?nt lnclude directors (exeéutwe and. non-executwe) and sehior managemant who have authorlty

for planning, __;ecttng and controlling the 'Group:sThe compensation paid or payabld to key management for
employee ggrvices’ Is shown betow:
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
US$'000 US$'000 Uss$'o00  USS$'000
§ ‘and other short-term bggq\g@ts 407 452 ‘ - B
S 407 452 - -

S

Year end balances with related parties
Amaunts ou(standmg at the reportmg date to related parties are stated bek':wm

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020

UsS$'000  US$'000 uUss$'eoo Us$ 000
EDENOR 1,169 w5 1,168 g
SAE 2 2 L
AESA . 959 3@&3&}} .
EDELCOS (1,169) (1,169) E¥ 3
HODS (1,058) . - I ¥EE
Key management personnel : (2,225) ‘420094) - 7

Amounts owed to key management personnel are due to one of the Company (3 dlrectms Neil Bleasdale and hls
related company.

No other transactions occurred with refated partiés dufing the current and preceding years:
C




ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR. ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021,

28 Cash generated from Group operations

Profit / {Loss) for t?ie year after:tax
Adjustments for:
Tax charge / (credlt)
Share of profits in assocxates
Finance costs
Loss on ﬁnanqal mstruments measured at fa:r vahue through proﬁt or
loss .
Finance mcome
Gaino disposal of controlHng’interest
Hyperinfiation impact
Amorlesahon of intangible assets
: Deprectataon of property, p!ant and equipment
,’Encrease in provisions
‘Movements in working capital:
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other payables,
Increase in trade and other raceivables
Cash generated from operations

29 Cash generated from Company operations

Profit for the year after tax
Adjustments for:
Share of proﬁts in associates
Finance costs F

- Finance income
Movaments in working capltal .
(ncrease‘in trade and other receiva} les
{increase in trade and other payal es
Cash generated from operatlons

Bt

2021 2020
US$'000 US$'000
15,459 (20.946)
30,444 (872)
(36;535) -
51512 41,512
9,740 427
(3,967) (5:111)
(679) -
(51, 315) (29.086)
318
10,919 9,253
2,903 6,258
(6.613) (4.253)
33,943 40,782
{17,081) (6,852)
38,720 31,430
2021 2020
US$'000 -US$'000
34,817 620
(37.301) -
1,936 1,066
. (1.817)
(1,039) (279)
1,151 433
(436) 23

a o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

30 HDS deconsolidation

On 25 February 2021 AESA ceded 50% of the shares ‘it owned in HDSzThe transfer of HDS shares was made to South
Amencan Energy Development LLC (SAED) by virtue of a partial debt canoellauon agresement that Andina PLC entered
into"With SAED: After this transaction, the company has 40% of the HDS capkal and votes%' losmg controlin HDS and
therefore | mdnrect control in HASA.

The deconsolidatin of the HDS was accounted for as of 1 January 2021 due to the fact that the results of HDS between
ki January 2021 and 25 February 2021 were not sigmﬁcant the batances of HDS as of February 2021 are shown below?:

25 February 2021 .
_ Us§'000-
Current assets - ‘ ' : 1,077
Non-current assets : 5,142
Current liabilities .(61)
1!! i (5,839)
Result for the period : “319
The consolfdated balances of HOS as of 31 December 2020 are shown belaw; &
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HASA HDS ) Total
Notes - US$'000 Us$'000 us$'o00
Non-current assets
Intang!ble assets 12 7.573 - 7,573
Propeny,, plant and equipment 13 . 823 - 823
Right of use assets .20 1470 - 1,170
Total non-current assets 9,566 - : 9,566 .
Current assets .
Trade and other receivables 1.518 14 1,632
investments »- 14 1,003 ’ - 1,003
Cash and cash equivatents 740 212 #, 952
Total current assets 2,258 226 4 3,487
Total assets . 11,824 226 13,063
Current liabllities Co
Trade and other payables ’ (1,219) - (1,219)
Borrowirigs . - 19 (6) (74) “(80)
Leases 20 (216) - (216)
Total current liabilities (1,441) {74) {1,515)
Non-current liabilities . = o
Trade and other payables (302) - (302)
Leases 20 (688) - G (688)
Deferred tax liability 22 (2.046) fd . - {2.046)
Total non-current llabilities {3,036) . - {3,036)
Total liabilities (4,477) " {74) (4,561)

Net assets , 7,347 152 .. 8,502 -
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1ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
30 HQS d_econsolliiatlod : ‘

(Continued) -~ -

¥
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT -
: ‘ HASA HDS Total
. Uss$'000 Us$'000 uss$o00
Revenue , 3,556 - 3,556
Cost of sales _ (2,619) = (2,619)
Gross profit 937 2 937
‘Distrbution Gast - (140)
Administrative expenses 291} (26) 317)
Other operating income g 52 52
Operating profit 506 26 §32
' Finance income : 1,162 408 1,560
.. Finance casts (6743 (524) (1,398)
Hyperififiation impact 742y 127 {615)
Profit before taxation 42 37 79
Adyey, e ' LW GRS

" Tax on {{gs8)¥ (02 - (302)
. Loss for the financial year (260) a7 {223)

.. (Loss}) for the financial year(s attiibutable to:;
- Owners of the parent company =~ (93)
- Non-controlling interests (130)
: (223)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
;FOR THE YEAR ENDED .31 DECEMBER 2021,

T — 1 R
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30 HDS daconsalidaﬂon i _ ) ] ) (Continued)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS,:

HASA HDS Total
usg'ooo ¢ uS$'e00 uss$'000
Cash flows from operating activities .
{Loss) for the year after tax {223) ' - (223)
Adjustments for: - )
Tax (credit)/charge : 302 - 302
Finance costs 338 116 454
Hyperinfiation impact . : (615) - {615)
Depreciation of property, plant and equnpment 661 B . 661
increase in trade and other payabtes {981) (87) {1.078)
Increase in trade and other recéivables 543 - 543
Net cash generated from operating activities 25 . 19 44

Cash ftows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment . (177)
Net cash used in investing activities i . (177)
Cash flows from financing activities _ _ 4

" Proceeds from borrowings 79 ] - ’ 79
Repayment of borrowings paid’ (130) - (130)
Net cash used in financing activities {61) - (81)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents P v A 203) 19 (184)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year , 495 170 ~ 665
Effect of foreign exchange rates - 448, . 23 471

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year e 740, 212 952

DRI
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- ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
31 Subsequgnt events '

New investment

Between 30 August 2022 and 21 December 2022, Andina acquired 135,130,876 ordinary shares of ECHO
ENERGY PLC (AIM: ECHO), the.latin American focused energy company for 0.25 pence per share,,
representative of a 4.91% of the capital stock and voting power.

ECHO ENERGY PLC has a 70% non-operated participation in the Santa Cruz Sur assets, consisting of five

production concassions, which produce gas and oil. The Santa Cruz Sur assets are located in the Austral basin,:
onshore Argentina and with infrastructure in ptace for gas transport by pipeline to Buenos Aires and il sales at

the Punta Layola terminal for both domestic and export sales.

COoViD-19

Unlike 2020, which was strongly affected by the COVID-19 pandemic that had a high social, economic and
financial impact, 2021 was a year of ecanomic recovery thanks to the rapid distribution of vaccines and
implementation of vaccination programs all over the world, which allowed for a return to some greater normalcy
in terms of activity.

In 2021, the Federal Government launched an intensive vaccination campaign:in order to control the pandemic;:
which allowed for a return to normal and thereby for a strong rabound in economic activity throughout the year.

ARthough the future of the pandemic remains unknown, at the date of this report, the situation is stabilised, and
management do not expect significant further impact.

CAMMESA
On 29 December 2022, a Deed Agreemant was signed by and between EDEMSA, EPRE, the SEN and the
Government of the Province of Mendoza for the resolution of MEM's obligations. The main issues that were agreed

were:

L) B Recognmon of the debt in favor of CAMMESA,..

2) Recognmon of the credif in favor of EDEMSA with the SEN,,

3) Determination of the payment plan,

4) Renounang of EDEMSA to any nght action or administrative, ]u:ﬂoral extrajudicial or arbitration claim in

. the Atgentme Republic and/or abroad against the Nauonal State and/or CAMMESA and/or the Province of Mendoza;
in relation to the rate freeze for the year 2020 provided for'in Decree No;;:31 1#20 and its extensions and/or in Laws NG;:
27 4341, 27,431 and 27,541,

- Closure of lawsuits filed agamsl the Naﬁonai Stale and/or CAMME SA related to the debt with the Wholesale
Electricity Markets

Among the obﬁgauons of the Distributor,, EDEMSA agreed to sign a Debt Regularization Agreement with CAMMESA
(for the current debt in force as of 30 Apiil. 2021} before 31 May 2023 (extended according to SEN's note NO-2023-
48607674);:

At the date of these financial statements, EDEMSA Is within the penod stipulated for the signing of the Debt
Regulanzatxon AgreementiTherefore, the Company S Management beliéves the |mpact thereof will be recorded at the
moment of execution of the Debt Regulanzation Agreement that the Distributor carries out with its debtar (CAMMESA):

Although to date the parties have not yetfi fi naﬁsed the Debt Regularization Agreement, EDEMSA is negotiating with
the® mtentxon of signing it. In the meantime, EDEMSA has made fuij payments to CAMMESA for all invoices related to
the purchase of energy since March 2021. The sugn‘ing of the Debt Regularization Agreement with CAMMESA is
crudial for EDEMSA as it "would enable the Con;pany to agree a payment pian with its main supplier. This would
contribute to stabliizing its economic and fi nancnat*sutuatnon.gulﬁmatetyi improving the financial position of the entire
Group,,
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_ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 Subsequent events o » (Conllnugd)

Settlement Agreement with the Government of the Province of Mendoza

On 3 January 2023, EDEMSA entered’into a Settiement Agreement wnth the Province of Mendoza; réinforced by
the publication of Decree 70/23 on 31 January 2023, dimed at resolving the diSputes ofigi

Income (as set outin Article 15 of Law 27:341) durin 313 and 2016 that should have been recewed by EDEMSA
and remained unpaid for reasons atmbulab!e to the Province's obllgations.v 3

Pursuant to the abovementioned Settiement Agreement, the Province of Mendoza"fé

a) has granted EDEMSA a 20-year extenskm of the concesslon agreement for. the electdéty distnbuflon servfoe
as from 1 August 2028. In add:txon{;gt agreesy not to offer for bid the award of EDEMSA’s Class A shares-in
view of the intent declared by the curfent holder to retain such ownership, and not to make any monetary c!alm
against the Distributor for the extension of the concession agreement term hereby granted,x

b) reduces the concession fee! (canon)‘fmm ten percent (10%) o Six percent (Qgg;, from the date this agreement
becomes effective,

c) The Granting Authority, as holder of Class B and C shares of EDEMSA undertakes to carry outthe necessary
corporate actions for the purpose of ensur[ng that the proms to which ho!ders of Class B and C shares may be
eventually entitled during the val'dity of the concession agreement be a!located to investments |ntended to
expand the system and/or energy efﬁc:ency, and

d) undertakes to comply with the tariff readjustment procedures under the concession agreement and the
applicable legis{ation, and to recogmse in the determination of the tafiff charts the costs of centaiifinvestment
plans to be carried out by EDEMSA and the payment plan agreed between EDEMSACAMMESA, the SEN
and the Prov!nce of Mendoza slgned in December 2022 to regu!anza its debts with the” MEM (See Settlement
of CAMMESA'S current debt) and the balance,of the payment plan signed by the Distributor and CAMMESA
in 2018 (See Settiement of CAMMESA'S historic dabt):®
2
On the other hand;:EDEMSA:

a) waives any adm‘inistratwe or judlcnai dalms.{whether filed or not,. for.Unearned Income accrued duing 2013-
20163 up to thedaté of signing the agreement,

'f*”;

. B
b) undertakes {o fulfi_l},a 10-year invastment p_{ans agreed with EPRE;s

c) undertakes o obta!n and deliver to the Granting Author(ty‘l) the ratification by the shareholders’ meetiiig of
EDEMSA andtits shareholders of the conditions of this transactf’ Fwith i) waive alliadministrative or judicjal
claims;whether or not filed to date. In pamcutar waives any clair ﬁled or notz before the Internatidnal Center
for Settlement of investment Disputes (ICSiD) against the Granting Authority and/or EPRE,and

d) the current holder of Class A shares should declareiitsiintention to reta!n such ownership thls was completed
through notanahnot:ficatlon dated 13 March 2023.

Although the menltoned agreement has no directi] [mpact o the 2021 ﬁnanc«al statements*‘tt reflects posiiively on

the future of EDEMSAi partucu|ar1y relating to the lmprovement of cash flows and the vaiue of EDEMSA, because
of the 20-year concéssion extension, the reduction of the concession fee and due‘to the recogmﬂon in the
determination of the tariff charts the costs of certain‘investment ptans to be caried o6ut by EDEMSA and of the
payment, plan agreed between EDEMSA. CAMMESA the SEN and the Province of Mendoza,,therabwmprovmg
the ﬁnancial position of the Group making'it to continue operating as a going concern;;

L33
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' NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.DECEMBER2021 o oo o o oo oo i o

Y Subsequentevenw - o o . {Continued)

Economic comext
Between 1 January 2022 and 27 April 2023, the Argentine peso depreqated by 116% compared wnh the US
. dollar, which has led to an increase in costs There is a nsk that these increased costs may not be abke to be

passed on 1o the tariffs.

To the best of the knowledge and understanding of management and directors, since 31 December 2021, there
have been no other significant subsequent events not disclosed in this Annual Report that could affect the financial
statements presented for 2021.

e e

&,

e

ot P : 3%

P (e



